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PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED

(ABN 39 006 708 792)

ASX LISTING RULES — APPENDIX 4E

PRELIMINARY FINAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

The following information is presented in accordance with Listing Rule 4.3A of the Australian Securities
Exchange (“ASX”).

1. Details of the reporting period and the previous corresponding period
Current reporting period - the year ended 30 June 2020
Previous corresponding - the year ended 30 June 2019
period
2. Results for announcement to the market
Year ended 30 June 2020 30 June 2019 Increase /(Decrease)
$’000 $’000 $’000 %

2.1 Revenue from ordinary
activities 62,726 62,853 (127) (0.20)

Net (loss)/profit before tax (27,317) 53,969 (81,286) (150.62)

Underlying net profit before
tax 32,072 27,448 4,624 16.85

Underlying net profit after
tax 26,254 22,043 4,211 19.10

2.2 Net profit (loss)/profit from
ordinary activities after tax
attributable to members (17,509) 37,612 (55,121) (146.55)

Underlying net profit (from
ordinary activities after tax
attributable to members 25,034 20,765 4,269 20.56

2.3 Net (loss)/profit for the
period attributable to
members (17,509) 37,612 (55,121) (146.55)

Underlying net profit (loss)
for the period attributable to
members 25,034 20,765 4,269 20.56

Underlying results are unaudited Non-IFRS measures. Refer to the attached Financial Report for details of
these calculations.

2.4  Dividends (distributions) Amount per Franking amount per Conduit
security (cents)  security foreign
income per
security
2020 Final 25 100% n/a

2.5 Record date for determining entitlements to the dividend

18 September 2020
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PRELIMINARY FINAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2.6 Commentary on “Results for Announcement to the Market”
A brief explanation of any figures in 2.1 to 2.4 above, necessary to enable the figures to be understood, is
contained in the attached Unaudited Financial Report for the Year ended 30 June 2020.
3. A statement of comprehensive income
A statement of comprehensive income together with notes to the statement is contained in the attached
Unaudited Financial Report for the Year ended 30 June 2020.
4. A statement of financial position
A statement of financial position together with notes to the statement is contained in the attached
Unaudited Financial Report for the Year ended 30 June 2020.
5. A statement of cash flows
A statement of cash flows together with notes to the statement is contained in the attached Unaudited
Financial Report for the Year ended 30 June 2020.
6. A statement of changes in equity
A statement of changes in equity together with notes to the statement is contained in the attached
Unaudited Financial Report for the Year ended 30 June 2020.
7. Details of individual and total dividends or distributions and dividend or distribution payments.
Type Record date Payment date Amount Total Franked Conduit
per Dividend amount foreign
Security ($) per income
(cents) security per
security
2019 Final 6 September 2019 11 October 2019 15.0 7,146,355 100% n/a
2020 Interim 6 March 2020 2 April 2020 10.0 4,970,848 100% n/a
8. Details of any dividend or distribution reinvestment plans
Not applicable
9. Net tangible assets per security
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Net tangible assets per
security $6.84 $6.07
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ASX LISTING RULES — APPENDIX 4E

PRELIMINARY FINAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

10. Details of entities over which control has been gained or lost during the period
During the period, control was gained over the following entities:

Name of entity Date control gained

During the period, control was lost over the following entities:

Name of entity Date control lost

11. Details of associates and joint venture entities
Ownership %

30 June 2020
Associates
Aether General Partners 25.00
AlphaShares, LLC? -
Blackcrane Capital, LLC 25.00
Capital & Asset Management Group, LLP? 32.50
Freehold Investment Management Limited? -
Independent Financial Planner Group* 24.90
Northern Lights Alternative Advisors LLP 23.00
Roc Group® 30.00
Victory Park Capital Advisors, LLC 24.90
Victory Park Capital GP Holdco, LP 24.90
Joint venture
Copper Funding, LLC® 50.00
Associate of the joint venture
Pennybacker Capital Management, LLC’ 16.50

30 June 2020

$’000

Aggregate share of profits of associates/joint venture:
Profit/(loss) from ordinary activities before tax 20,847
Income tax on ordinary activities (415)
Net profit/(loss) from ordinary activities after tax 20,432
PAC share of profits/(loss) of associates/joint venture: 1,751

Notes:
1 - It was wound down as at 30 June 2020.

30 June 2019

25.00
36.53
25.00
20.00
30.89
23.00
17.59
24.90
24.90

30 June 2019
$’000

20,118
(847)
19,271

1,118

2 — Additional capital contributions made during the year increased the ownership from 20% at 30 June 2019 to 32.50% as at 30 June

2020.
3 —It was sold on 14 October 2019.

4 — Additional capital contributions made during the year increased the ownership from 10% at 30 June 2019 to 24.90% as at 30 June

2020. This investment was previously held as financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income.

5 — Ownership increased from 17.59% at 30 June 2019 to 30% on 2 July 2019.

6 — Established on 23 November 2019 with Kudu Investments Management LLC to hold the investment in Pennybacker.

7 — Acquired on 14 December 2019.
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12,

13.

14.

15.

Any other significant information needed by an investor

Further significant information needed by an investor to make an informed assessment of the entity’s
financial performance and financial position is contained in the attached Unaudited Financial Report for the
Year ended 30 June 2020.

For foreign entities, which set of accounting standards is used in compiling the report

Not applicable

A commentary on the results for the period

A commentary, including any significant information needed by an investor to make an informed
assessment of the entity’s activities and results, is contained in the attached Unaudited Financial Report for
the Year ended 30 June 2020.

Audit / Review of Accounts upon which this report is based and qualification of audit / review

This Preliminary Final Report is based on the attached Financial Report for the Year ended 30 June 2020
which is in the process of being audited. At the date of this Preliminary Financial Report, the Company is

not aware of any matter that would impact the reported results or that would lead to the independent
audit report being subject to modified opinion, emphasis of matter or other matter paragraph.
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For the year ended 30 June 2020



PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)
TABLE OF CONTENTS

Operating and FINaNCial REVIEW. ... .ceuiieuiieeiiieiiieiiiieiiiiiiiieiieiiieinreitreinseiirseitsaesteesrassseessrsessrsssssnssransse 3
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss (Unaudited) for the year ended 30 June 2020.......c.cceevunrencrennncennianns 13
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Unaudited) for the year ended 30 June 2020.........cccceuuuenee 14
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Unaudited) as at 30 June 2020......ccccccetecererecenrenrecerassacessannes 15
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Unaudited) for the year ended 30 June 2020 ..........cccceeunrennnnnnns 16
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Unaudited) for the year ended 30 June 2020.......cccceceueruinnirennancensnanns 17

Notes to the Financial Statements (Unaudited) for the year ended 30 June 2020.......cc.ccccruirencrnninienciannancennnans 18




PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)
OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Investment activities during the year

New acquisitions
On 21 September 2019, the Group acquired a non-voting Class A Preferred Interest, equivalent to an 8% equity interest,

on a fully diluted basis, in Proterra Investment Partners, LP (“Proterra”) for USD20,500,000 ($30,283,000) and a
potential earn-out obligation with a maximum additional consideration of USD9,500,000 ($14,034,000). The Group is
entitled to 8% of the gross management revenues and 16% of the liquidation proceeds in the event of a sale. The
investment has been accounted for as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss. For the year ended 30 June
2020, contributions from Proterra to the Group amounted to $2,738,000 which have been accounted for as dividend
income. At 30 June 2020, a decrease in the fair value of the investment, net of the fair value of the earn-out liability,
amounting to $298,000 was also recognised. The net decrease in fair value was due to changes in cash flow forecast.

Proterra is an alternative investment manager based in Minneapolis, Minnesota, the USA offering private equity
investment strategies focused on agriculture, food, and metals and mining.

On 14 December 2019, the Group effectively acquired a 16.5% equity interest in Pennybacker Capital Management, LLC
(“Pennybacker”) for USD20,000,000 ($29,002,000) alongside an equal co-investor, Kudu Investment Management, LLC
(“Kudu”). The Group has also a potential earn-out obligation with a maximum additional consideration of USD7,500,000
(510,876,000), which would be paid between the closing of the transaction and 31 December 2024 if certain revenue
thresholds for Pennybacker’s emerging growth and income platforms are met.

The Group and Kudu’s combined 33% interest in Pennybacker is held through Copper Funding LLC, (“CFL”). The Group
owns a 50% interest in CFL. The Group accounts for the interest in CFL as an investment in joint venture. The investment
in Pennybacker held by CFL has been accounted for as an investment in associate. The Group is effectively entitled to
16.5% of the net income of Pennybacker and 2.5% of all carried interest from new funds and accounts.

The potential earn-out obligation was not recognised by CFL; hence the Group recorded its share of this obligation. CFL
will ultimately pay Pennybacker this potential earn-out obligation. The Group’s share of potential earn-out obligation
has been added to the acquisition cost of Pennybacker through CFL. At the date of acquisition, the Group also recorded
its share on the fair value of the earn-out payments in the amount of USD3,139,000 ($4,552,000). As at 30 June 2020,
the fair value of this liability was $5,515,000. The increase in fair value of the earn-out obligation was due to changes in
cash flow forecast. For the year ended 30 June 2020, the share in profits from Pennybacker to the Group amounted to
$88,000 (net of $691,000 amortisation of intangible assets).

Pennybacker is an alternative investment manager based in Austin, Texas, USA offering private equity investment
strategies focused on both commercial, retail, office, and industrial assets, as well as affordable multifamily residential
real estate in certain markets in the USA.

Additional contributions to existing asset managers

On 2 July 2019, the Group acquired an additional 12.41% equity interest in Roc Group for $6,826,000 increasing the
Group’s equity interest to 30%. Roc Partners is a leading alternative investment manager specialising in private equity in
the Asia Pacific region. The investment in Roc Partners is still accounted for as an associate since the increase in
ownership did not change the Group’s significant influence over Roc Partners. For the year ended 30 June 2020, the
share in profits from Roc Group amounted to $1,234,000 (net of $284,000 amortisation of intangible assets).
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The Group made an additional total contribution of GBP1,000,000 ($1,881,000) to Capital & Asset Management Group,
LLP (“CAMG”) through capital drawdowns of GBP250,000 each made on 26 August 2019, 5 November 2019, 23 January
2020, and 19 May 2020, respectively. The Group was issued an additional interest of 12.5% for all the total drawdown
resulting to an increased interest from 20% to 32.5%. CAMG is a private infrastructure investment firm based in London,
England and Washington, DC, USA. The existing accounting treatment of the investment as an associate did not change.
For the year ended 30 June 2020, the share in net losses from CAMG amounted to $470,000.

On 31 December 2019, the Group made an additional contribution to IFP Group, LLC (“IFP”) of USD600,000 ($895,000)
to fund the increasing capital requirements of IFP as a result in the growth of the business and increased level of
operations. The additional contribution resulted in an increased equity from 10% to 16%. The accounting treatment of
this investment in IFP was changed from fair value through other comprehensive income to an associate following the
increase in equity ownership from 10% to 16%. In addition, the Group have also provided a USD1,500,000 ($2,200,000)
credit facility to IFP for the purpose of providing loans to new advisors to use as transition assistance to the new IFP
platform. IFP made drawdowns of USD654,000 ($976,000) and USD235,000 ($351,000) on 19 October 2019 and 19
November 2019, respectively.

On 11 March 2020, the USD889,000 ($1,327,000) loan under the credit facility and the related interest of USD11,000
(516,000) was recharacterised into additional capital contributions resulting in a further increased equity from 16% at
31 December 2019 to 24.9%. The investment in IFP is still accounted for as an associate since the increase in ownership
did not change the Group’s significant influence over IFP. For the year ended 30 June 2020, the share in net losses from
IFP amounted to $15,000 (net of $45,000 amortisation of intangible assets).

On 11 March 2020, IFP and the Group have amended the credit facility to provide an additional balance of USD600,000
($895,000). All other terms of the credit facility remain unchanged. IFP made drawdowns of USD216,000 ($322,000) and
USD252,000 ($376,000) on 11 March 2020 and 10 June 2020, respectively. The loans have been accounted for as a
financial asset at amortised cost.

On 11 March 2020, the Group contributed an additional USD800,000 ($1,194,000) to IFP as operating capital
contribution to support further growth of the business and increased level of operations. This contribution did not give
rise to an increased equity ownership nor a return equivalent to the existing equity in IFP. The Group is entitled to a 10%
annualised return to be collected upon IFP making an initial distribution. The investment has been accounted for as a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss. At 30 June 2020, the increase in the fair value of this investment was
$36,000.

Disposal and/or restructuring of investments

On 14 October 2019, the Group sold its 30.89% stake in Freehold Investment Management Limited (“FIM”), an
Australian based fund manager specialising in Australian and global real estate and infrastructure sectors. The pre-tax
proceeds amounted to $459,000 which approximated the book value of the investment.

On 2 January 2020, Seizert redeemed its 500 Class A Common Units held by the Group for USD1 per unit as part of its
equity restructuring. The restructure resulted in the Group to change from 54.55% to 25% on a fully diluted basis. The
Group owns the preferred units that are entitled to distribution preference and still retained its 54.55% voting rights,
majority Board representation and distribution waterfall. The existing accounting treatment of the investment as a
subsidiary did not change since the Group still effectively controls Seizert.
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Funds under management (“FUM”)
As at 30 June 2020, the FUM of the Group’s asset managers was $93,320,896,000 (2019: $57,465,950,000).

The net increase in FUM was due to the acquisitions of Proterra and Pennybacker and positive net inflows and market
performance from the asset managers particularly Carlisle Management Company S.C.A (“Carlisle”), GQG Partners, LLC
(“GQG”) and Victory Park Capital Advisors, LLC (“VPC”) offset by the net outflow from Seizert Capital Partners, LLC
(“Seizert”).

Total FUM as Inflows from Foreign Total FUM as
at 30 June Boutique Exchange at 30 June
Boutique 2019 Acquisitions  Net Flows Other? Movement3 2020
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Tier 1 44,403,729 4,732,772 25,194,822 5,322,214 (195,807) 79,467,730
Tier 2 13,062,221 2,763,170  (1,644,228) (597,281) 279,284 13,863,166
Total Boutiques 57,465,950 7,495,942 23,550,594 4,724,933 83,477 93,320,896
Open-end* 44,529,774 - 22,068,420 5,774,166 (91,484) 72,280,876
Closed-end* 12,936,176 7,495,942 1,482,174  (1,049,233) 174,961 21,040,020
Total 57,465,950 7,495,942 23,550,594 4,724,933 83,477 93,320,896

Notes:

! The beginning balance has been adjusted to reflect the recategorisation of Seizert from Tier 1 to Tier 2 boutique.

2 Other includes investment performance, market movement, distributions, and sale of the Group’s holdings.

3 The Australian dollar (“AUD”) slightly weakened against the USA dollar (“USD”) during the year. The AUD/USD spot rate was 0.6890 at 30 June 2020
compared to 0.7023 as at 30 June 2019. The Net Flows and Other items are calculated using the average rates.

4 Certain adjustments have been made to previously reported figures for presentation purposes.

The relationship between the boutiques’ FUM and the economic benefits received by the Group can vary dramatically
based on factors such as:

e the fee structures of each boutique;
e the Group’s ownership interest in the boutique; and
e the specific economic features of each relationship between the Group and the boutique.

Accordingly, the Company cautions against simple extrapolation based on FUM trends. The FUM of the Group was
impacted by the onset of the novel coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) as global pandemic in March 2020. The
impact of COVID-19 not only to the Group’s FUM but to the Group as a whole is discussed in detail in page 10 of this
report.

Tier 1 Boutique is a term used to describe an asset manager that the Group expects to produce at least $4,000,000 of
annual earnings for the Group while a Tier 2 Boutique is one that the Group expects will contribute less than this.
Although there is no guarantee any boutique will meet this threshold, this categorisation is intended to provide insight
into which boutiques are expected to be the most economically impactful to the Group.

Open-end is a term used by the Group to indicate FUM that are not committed for an agreed period and therefore can
be redeemed by an investor on relatively short notice. Closed-end is a term used by the Group to denote FUM where
the investor has committed capital for a fixed period and redemption of these funds can only eventuate after an agreed
time and in some cases at the end of the life of the fund.

People

The Group employed 20 full time equivalent employees at 30 June 2020 (2019: 19) working out of our Australian offices
located in Sydney and Melbourne, and USA offices located in Tacoma and Denver.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Operating results for the year
Underlying net profit after tax (“NPAT”) attributable to members of the Company

The Group generated a net loss before tax (“NLBT”) of $27,317,000 for the year ended 30 June 2020 (2019: net profit
before tax (“NPBT”) of $53,969,000); a decrease of 151%. This result, however, has been significantly impacted by non-
cash, non-recurring and/or infrequent items. Normalising this result for the impact of these non-cash, non-recurring
and/or infrequent items results in underlying NPAT to members of the Company of $25,034,000 (2019: $20,765,000), an
increase of 21%.

2020 2019
$’000 $’000
Reported (NLBT)/NPBT (27,317) 53,969
Non-cash items
- Impairment of investments? 52,693 28,857
- Amortisation of identifiable intangible assets? 6,168 4,310
- Fair value adjustments of financial assets at FVTPL (11,258) 91
- Fair value adjustments of financial liabilities at FVTPL 1,510 414
- Share-based payment expenses 961 1,016
50,074 34,688
Non-recurring items
- Provision for estimated liability for Nereus 4,405 7,688
- Legal, consulting expenses, deal costs and break fee costs? 2,819 1,201
- Net foreign exchange loss 1,228 1,102
- Loss on conversion of financial asset at amortised cost to
investment in associate 863 -
- Gain on sale of investments - (73,013)
- Broker and consulting fees? - 1,310
- Redundancy costs - 503
9,315 (61,209)
Unaudited underlying NPBT 32,072 27,448
Income tax expense® (5,818) (5,405)
Unaudited underlying NPAT 26,254 22,043
Less: share of non-controlling interests (1,220) (1,278)
Unaudited underlying NPAT attributable to members of the Company 25,034 20,765
Notes:

! The impairment relates to impairment of investment in associates and goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets from subsidiaries excluding

the impairment of capital contributions to Nereus amounting to $709,000 and impairment of trade and other receivables amounting to $63,000
(2019: $542,000).

The 2020 amortisation of identifiable intangible assets included the amortisation of intangible assets of the associates amounting to $2,889,000
(2019: $1,686,000). The amortisation is recorded as an offset to the share in net profit of the associates.

For the current year, these were costs incurred in relation to the derivative action against several of the Group’s current and former directors, deal
costs on the acquisitions of investments and expenses incurred for unsuccessful divestments. In the prior year the fees relate to the costs from
acquisitions of investments.

The broker and consulting fees pertained to the cost of services in relation to the appointment of an external party to identify suitable investors for
the two operating solar PV generation plants of Nereus.

The net income tax expense is the reported income tax expense adjusted for the tax effect of the normalisation adjustments (including prior year
tax adjustments).
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The criteria for calculating the underlying NPAT attributable to members of the Company are based on the following:
- Non-cash items relate to income and expenses that are accounting entries rather than movements in cash; and
- Non-recurring items relate to income and expenses from events that are infrequent in nature including their

related costs and foreign exchange impact.

Cash flows

Set out below is a summary of the cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2020.

2020 2019

$’000 $’000
Cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 25,620 (2,364)
Cash (used in)/provided by investing activities (65,499) 6,906
Cash (used in) financing activities (21,325) (34,320)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (61,204) (29,778)

Operating activities

Cash flows from operations have increased from a net outflow of $2,364,000 for the year ended 30 June 2019 to net
inflow of $25,620,000 for the year ended 30 June 2020. This was mainly attributable to the decrease in income tax paid
from $26,746,000 in the prior year to $2,946,000 in the current year. The tax paid in the prior year was the result of tax
liabilities accruing on gains on disposal in previous years.

Investing activities

Cash flows from investing activities have decreased from a net inflow of $6,906,000 in the year ended 30 June 2019 to
net outflow of $65,499,000 for the year ended 30 June 2020. This was primarily attributable to the acquisitions of
Proterra ($30,283,000); Pennybacker ($29,002,000); additional contributions to CAMG, IFP and Roc Group
($12,820,000) and offset by collections of other financial assets ($5,808,000). In the prior year, this was primarily
associated by the disposals of Aperio Group, LLC ($101,594,000) and RARE Infrastructure Ltd ($21,510,000); maturity of
the short-term deposits ($20,000,000); net of the acquisitions of VPC and VPC-Holdco ($94,825,000).

Financing activities

Cash flows used in financing activities decreased from $34,320,000 for the year ended 30 June 2019 to $21,325,000 for
the year ended 30 June 2020. This was primarily due to repayment of the of the earn-out liability - Aether ($9,920,000)
(2019: nil); full repayment of Seizert notes payable of $7,499,000 (USD5,039,000) (2019:58,494,000); repayment of
short term borrowings in 2019 ($9,269,000), and payment of dividends ($12,117,000) (2019: $15,246,000). This was
offset by the net proceeds from the issue of the Company’s ordinary shares which amounted to $11,993,000 (2019: nil).

The issuance of the ordinary shares was completed on 9 December 2019 by a fully underwritten institutional placement
with 2,066,116 new fully paid ordinary shares being issued at an issue price of $6.05 per share totalling to $12,500,000
before issue costs. The new shares rank equally with existing shares. The proceeds of the placement were used to settle
deferred consideration from existing investments and replenish the Group’s operating capital.
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Normalised Cash Flow from Operations

2020 2019
$’000 $’000

Unaudited underlying NPBT 32,072 27,448
Non-cash/cash items
- Dividends and distributions income (25,271) (19,851)
- Share of profits of associates (4,640) (2,993)
- Dividends and distributions received 26,966 25,568
- Net interest income (92) (638)
- Net interest (received)/paid (154) 202
- Impairment — Nereus capital contributions 709 542
- Depreciation 1,047 368
- Increase/decrease in assets and liabilities (253) (2,014)
- Other (income)/expense (118) 54

(1,806) 1,238
Unaudited underlying pre-tax cash from operations 30,266 28,686
Non-recurring/infrequent items
- Legal, consulting expenses, deal costs and break fee costs (2,819) (1,201)
- Net foreign exchange loss 1,119 (686)
- Broker and consulting fees - (1,310)
- Redundancies - (503)

(1,700) (3,700)
Pre-tax cash from operations 28,566 24,986
Income tax paid (2,946) (27,350)
Cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 25,620 (2,364)

The income tax paid in FY19 was significantly impacted by the tax payable on gains resulting from the disposals of
Aperio Group, LLC and Investors Mutual Limited realised in previous financial years.

(Loss)/Earnings per share

Set out below is a summary of the earnings per share for the year to 30 June 2020.

2020 2019
Reported net loss after tax (“NLAT”)/NPAT attributable to the members
of the Company ($’000) (17,509) 37,612
Unaudited underlying NPAT attributable to the members of the Company ($’000) 25,034 20,765
Weighted average number of ordinary shares on issue (Number) 48,797,128 47,642,367
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (cents) (35.88) 78.95

Unaudited underlying earnings per share (cents) 51.30 43.59
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Dividends

Dividends paid or declared by the Company to members since the end of the previous financial year:

Cents Total Franked at Date of Payment
per Amount 30%
Share $’000
Declared and paid during the financial year:
- Final for 2019 on ordinary shares 15.00 7,146 100% 11 October 2019
- Interim for 2020 on ordinary shares 10.00 4,971 100% 2 April 2020
12,117
Declared after the end of the financial year:
- Final for 2020 on ordinary shares 25.00 12,427 100% 23 October 2020

On 28 February 2020, the Directors of the Company declared an interim fully franked dividend of 10 cents per share (28
February 2019: 10 cents per share).

On 31 August 2020, the Directors of the Company declared a final fully franked dividend of 25 cents per share (30
August 2019: 15 cents per share). The final dividend for 2020 financial year will be subject to the Dividend Reinvestment
Plan (“DRP”). Any shares issued under the DRP will be at a 5% discount to the average daily Volume Weighted Average
Price calculated over a 10-day period commencing on the third trading day following the record date. This dividend has
not been provided for in the 30 June 2020 consolidated financial statements.

Total dividends relating to financial year 2020 amounted to 35.0 cents per share an increase of 10.0 cents over 25.00
cents in the financial year 2019.

Financial position

Set out below is a summary of the financial position for the year ended 30 June 2020.

2020 2019

$’000 $’000
Cash and cash equivalents 20,154 80,232
Other current assets 21,705 25,184
Non-current assets 397,938 325,765
Current liabilities (19,313) (36,211)
Non-current liabilities (17,270) (11,443)
Non-controlling interest (543) (537)
Net assets attributable to members of the Company 402,016 382,990
Net assets per share at end of financial year (S) 8.09 8.04

The level of gearing of the Group was reduced with the repayment of the current portion of the ARA Fund V earn out
liability of $9,920,000 (USD6,647,000) and the full repayment of the Seizert Notes Payable of $7,499,000
(USD5,039,000). The remainder of the cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2019 provided the Group liquidity and
flexibility to fund the acquisitions of Proterra and Pennybacker.




PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)
OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

IMPACT OF COVID-19 TO THE GROUP

In late 2019, COVID-19 began spreading. On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 a global
pandemic.

The COVID-19 pandemic has severely impacted, and will likely continue to severely impact, global health, social, and
economic conditions. This has resulted in slowing global economic growth; substantial volatility in financial markets;
increased unemployment; and daily working and living challenges such as restricted travel and social interaction. All
businesses, including the Company, have been impacted by COVID-19; albeit to varying degrees.

Impact of COVID-19 on our people

The health and welfare of our people is a key priority for the Company. Our flexible work practices have enabled our
teams to quickly adapt with minimal disruption to our business. From mid-March 2020 most of our people were
working remotely. In addition, initiatives were implemented to ensure that people remained connected with their
colleagues and had the support of management where there was a need to balance work with additional family
responsibilities.

Most of the business systems used by our Administrative teams operate in the “cloud”. As such, they were able to
continue with minor inconvenience.

The travel restrictions, however, reduced the amount of travel that the investment, operations, and distribution teams
could undertake in the last quarter of the financial year. This hampered the activities of these teams who traditionally
have met “face-to-face” with new investment opportunities, our boutiques and potential distribution partners. These
teams have however been able to mitigate this disruption using technology (e.g. video conferencing).

Impact of COVID-19 on our boutiques

The primary business of the Group is to invest in global asset managers, private advisory, placement and private equity
firms. The Group’s strategy has been to enhance the resilience of the Group’s earnings by diversifying into investments
that are less susceptible to capital markets volatility and have a low correlation to other assets in the Group’s portfolio.
Therefore, our boutiques operate not just in listed equity markets but in different investment markets such as private
credit, life settlement, or real assets. Given the diverse nature of these activities, COVID-19 has impacted each of these
portfolio companies differently.

At 30 June 2020, approximately 23% of the FUM managed by the Group’s portfolio companies was in “closed-end”
funds. Excluding the GQG “open-ended” funds, this was 73%. The nature of these “closed-end” funds is where the
investor has committed capital for a set period and can only redeem after an agreed period. As such the FUM for
“closed-end” funds are not as susceptible to unforeseen redemptions as an “open-end” fund. It is also typical that fees
for this type of fund are based on committed capital and not on invested capital or net asset value; thus, ensuring a
more resilient income stream.

The announcement of COVID-19 as a pandemic in March 2020 saw large declines in global financial markets. The decline
in equity markets significantly impacted on the third quarter market performance of our long only equity managers.
This recovered to some degree over the fourth quarter. As at 30 June 2020, Blackcrane Capital, LLC and EAM Global
Investors, LLC had recovered strongly while GQG continued to have strong inflows throughout the year.

The economic uncertainty impacted not only equity markets but also other financial markets. As changes in the
availability and pricing of certain asset classes occurred, the ability of some Boutiques to invest and trade these assets
was impacted. This subsequently delays the ability of those Boutiques to generate performance fees.

With the general uncertainty in markets and the restricted ability to interact and travel the prospect for several of our
portfolio companies to raise new Funds and attract new investors has been delayed. As the value of these portfolio
companies is a function of their ongoing growth profile these delays impact on the resulting valuations.

10



PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED

(ABN 39 006 708 792)

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Australian dollar began the financial year at approximately US70 cents and ended the year at approximately US69
cents. Between those two dates though there was significant volatility. The high for the Australian dollar was US70.82
cents on July 19. The low (a 17-year low) was set on March 19 at US55.06 cents. The low point largely corresponded to

lows for global share markets. As most of our Boutiques are USD denominated assets the currency volatility impacts on
any assessment of these in AUD.

Impact of COVID-19 on our shareholders

Due to COVID-19, FY2020 was a very volatile period for Australian public company equities. The Company’s share price
was not immune to this volatility, experiencing a significant decline in the final week of March 2020 and recovering
before the financial year end. The Board recognises that shareholders have been impacted by the volatile share values
during this period.

The ASX S&P All Ordinaries and ASX 300 indices started the financial year at 6,699.17 and 6,568.42, respectively. They
finished the year at 6,001.35 and 5,858.54, respectively; a decline of 10.42% and 10.81% over the 12 months to 30 June
2020. Over the same period the Company’s share price commenced the year at $4.55 and finished it at $5.48; a rise of
20.44%.

The impact of COVID-19 on KMP remuneration

The revenue (excluding gain on sale of investments and share of boutiques) generated by the Group in FY20 is
significantly lower than the comparative result in FY19. While this result theoretically meant that the Company
qualified for some of the Government COVID-19 assistance programmes (e.g. Jobkeeper), this decline was not directly
attributable to COVID-19 but rather the scheduled run-off in commission payments. The Board therefore decided that it
was inappropriate for the Company to avail itself of this assistance.

The Board has specifically considered the current external environment and the impact to our stakeholders from COVID-
19:

e Management and the Board recognise the importance of retaining key people through this period of economic
uncertainty.

e The strategy of the Group, successfully implemented in prior years and executed in the current year, has reduced
the volatility of the Group’s earnings stemming from events such as COVID-19.

e Underlying NPAT of $25,034,000 compared to our last guidance of in the range of $23,000,000 to $25,000,000 while
prior year was underlying NPAT of $20,765,000.

e Net asset value as at 30 June 2020 was $8.09 per share compared to $8.04 per share at 30 June 2019.

e Shareholders may have been impacted through the volatility in the value of their shares during this period, but the
PAC share price rose over the year.

e The Board has resolved to pay a fully franked final dividend of 25 cents per share.

e The shareholders are being offered to reinvest their dividend entitlement through a dividend reinvestment plan at a
discount of 5% to the average of the daily Volume Weighted Average Price calculated over a 10-day period
commencing on the third trading day following the record date.

After careful consideration of all these factors, for FY2020, the Board determined that:
e Non-Executive Directors remuneration for FY21 would be $645,000; and

e The FY20 short term incentive for Executive KMP would be 50% of the maximum allowable, representing a decrease
of 28.6% on the prior year.
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PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)
OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Position
The Company maintains a healthy financial position.

e Excluding acquisition earn-outs and lease liabilities, it has no debt.

e Strong cash generation, with cash from operating activities was $25,620,000 against net cash used in operating
activities in prior year of $2,364,000.

e Underlying NPAT of $25,034,000 compared to our last guidance of in the range of $23,000,000 to $25,000,000 while
prior year was underlying NPAT of $20,765,000.

Governments and regulators across the world have reacted to the crisis caused by the COVID-19 pandemic by
implementing various programs, though it is currently unclear the extent to which these or future actions will be
successful. If the pandemic is prolonged or the government interventions are unsuccessful, the adverse impact could
deepen, and the Group’s results could also be affected.

The impact of COVID-19 after 30 June 2020

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic has seen an unprecedented global response by governments and regulators. The
Group’s financial results for FY20 have been impacted by COVID-19, but this has been mitigated due to the Group’s
strategy to enhance the resilience of the Group’s earnings by diversifying into investments that are less susceptible to
capital markets volatility and have a low correlation to other assets in the Group’s portfolio .

Valuations included in the financial report such as fair value assets, goodwill, other identifiable intangibles, investments
in associates and joint venture including financial liabilities are based on information available and relevant as at the
financial year end. As market conditions are changing daily, changes to the estimates and outcomes that have been
applied in the measurement of these assets and liabilities may arise in the future.

The Group continues to monitor developments in the COVID-19 pandemic and the measures being implemented to
control and slow the outbreak. Given the dynamic nature of these circumstances and the significant increase in
economic uncertainty, the related impact on the Group's future results of operations, cash flows and financial condition
cannot currently be reasonably estimated.
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PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (UNAUDITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Revenue

Other income and net gains on investments and financial instruments
Distributions and dividend income

Sundry income

(Loss) on reclassification of financial assets at amortised cost to investment
in associate

Gain on sale of investments

Change in fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Expenses

Salaries and employee benefits
Impairment expense

Administration and general expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Interest expense

Share of net profits of associates and joint venture accounted for using the
equity method

(Loss)/Profit before income tax expense

Income tax benefit/(expense)

(Loss)/Profit for the year

Attributable to:
The members of the Company
Non-controlling interests

(Loss)/Earnings per share attributable to the members of the Company
(cents per share):

- Basic

- Diluted

Franked dividends paid per share (cents per share) for the year

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.

Note 2020 2019
$’000 $’000

1 35,811 41,501

2 25,271 19,851

2 1,644 1,501

2 (863) -

2 - 73,013

2 9,748 (505)

35,800 93,860

3 (21,643) (24,120)

3 (53,464) (29,399)

3 (20,826) (25,351)

3 (4,326) (2,992)

3 (420) (648)

(100,679) (82,510)

22 1,751 1,118

(27,317) 53,969

4 11,028 (15,079)

(16,289) 38,890

(17,509) 37,612

1,220 1,278

(16,289) 38,890

6 (35.88) 78.95

6 (35.88) 78.14

17 25.00 32.00
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PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUDITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Note 2020 2019
$’000 $’000
(Loss)/Profit for the year (16,289) 38,890
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Change in fair value of financial assets, net of income tax 16a(i) 28,091 6,627
Foreign currency movement of investment revaluation reserve 16a(i) 15 2,369
28,106 8,996
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations 16a(ii) 8,482 14,758
Other comprehensive income for the year 36,588 23,754
Total comprehensive income 20,299 62,644
Attributable to:
The members of the Company 19,031 61,417
Non-controlling interests 1,268 1,227
20,299 62,644

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.




PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (UNAUDITED) AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables, net of expected credit losses
Other financial assets

Current tax assets

Other assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Trade and other receivables

Other financial assets, net of expected credit losses
Plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Investments in associates and joint venture

Other assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Provisions

Financial liabilities

Lease liabilities

Current tax liabilities
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Provisions

Financial liabilities

Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets

Equity

Share capital

Reserves

Retained earnings

Total equity attributable to members of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.

Note

10

10

11a(i)
21
22

12

13

14
11a(ii)

13
14
11a(ii)

15
16

2020 2019

$’000 $’000
20,154 80,232
14,837 12,809
2,248 7,518
2,792 2,789
1,828 2,068
41,859 105,416
283 -
197,986 120,066
932 1,208
2,096 -
62,732 94,094
133,606 110,143
303 254
397,938 325,765
439,797 431,181
5,785 7,506
12,028 8,407
- 16,969
888 -
612 3,329
19,313 36,211
181 219
9,443 3,853
1,658 -
6,643 7,371
17,925 11,443
37,238 47,654
402,559 383,527
178,424 166,279
126,620 90,934
96,972 125,777
402,016 382,990
543 537
402,559 383,527

15



PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (UNAUDITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Balance as at 1 July 2019

As previously reported

Impact of adoption of AASB 16 (Note 27)
As restated

(Loss)/profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:

(i) Net movement in investment
revaluation reserve net of income tax

(ii) Net movement in foreign currency
translation reserve
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfers within reserve (Note 16a(i))

Transactions with members in their

capacity as members:

(i) Issuance of shares, net of share issue
cost (Note 15)

(ii) Dividends paid (Note 17)
(iii) Share-based payments (Note 16)

(iv) Shares bought on market to settle

share-based payments (Note 16)
Total transactions with members in their
capacity as members

Balance as at 30 June 2020

Balance as at 1 July 2018

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
(i) Net movement in investment
revaluation reserve net of income tax

(ii) Net movement in foreign currency
translation reserve
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with members in their
capacity as members:
(i) Dividends paid (Note 17)

(ii) Share-based payments (Note 16)
Total transactions with members in their
capacity as members

Balance as at 30 June 2019

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.

)¢

Non-
Share Retained controlling
capital Reserves earnings interests Total equity
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
166,279 90,934 125,777 537 383,527
- - 4 - 4
166,279 90,934 125,781 537 383,531
- - (17,509) 1,220 (16,289)
- 28,106 - - 28,106
- 8,434 - 48 8,482
- 36,540 (17,509) 1,268 20,299
- (817) 817 - -
12,145 - - - 12,145
- - (12,117) (1,262) (13,379)
- 961 - - 961
- (998) - - (998)
12,145 (37) (12,117) (1,262) (1,271)
178,424 126,620 96,972 543 402,559
166,279 66,113 103,411 621 336,424
- - 37,612 1,278 38,890
- 8,996 - - 8,996
- 14,809 - (51) 14,758
- 23,805 37,612 1,227 62,644
- - (15,246) (1,311) (16,557)
- 1,016 - - 1,016
- 1,016 (15,246) (1,311) (15,541)
166,279 90,934 125,777 537 383,527
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PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Cash flow from operating activities

Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees

Dividends and distributions received

Interest received

Interest paid

Income tax paid

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Collections of financial assets at amortised cost

Collections of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Proceeds from maturity of short-term deposits

Loans provided to associates

Capital contributions to Nereus Holdings, LP
Payments for the purchase of financial assets at FVTPL
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at FVTPL
Payments for the purchase of financial assets at FVTOCI
Additional contributions to financial assets at FVTOCI
Payments for the purchase of associates

Proceeds from sale of associates

Additional contributions to associates

Payments for the purchase of a joint venture

Payment for the purchase of plant and equipment
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of shares, net of transaction costs
Repayment of borrowing

Repayments of financial liabilities

Repayment of Nereus liability

Repayments of principal portion of lease liabilities

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling interest in a subsidiary

Payments for the purchase of shares to settle shared-based payments
Net cash (used in) financing activities

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held
Cash at beginning of the financial year

Unrealised foreign exchange difference in cash
Cash at end of financial year

Non-cash investing and financing activities
Investing activities
Financing activities

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.

Note

8

)¢

2020 2019

$’000 $’000
38,270 44,135
(36,516) (39,430)
26,966 19,475
606 1,046
(760) (844)
(2,946) (26,746)
25,620 (2,364)
5,808 5,814
1,276 619
- 20,000
(2,024) -
(709) (542)
(31,477) (47,038)
- 21,510
- (1,515)
(895) -
- (94,825)
459 103,188
(8,867) (127)
(29,017) -
(53) (178)
(65,499) 6,906
11,993 -
(9,269)
(17,389 ) (8,494)
(746) -
(806) -
(12,117) (15,246)
(1,262) (1,311)
(998) -
(21,325) (34,320)
(61,204) (29,778)
80,232 110,096
1,126 (86)
20,154 80,232
(7,344) (12,214)
7,331 12,214
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
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PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

A. BASIS OF PREPARATION

This general-purpose financial report for the Company and the consolidated entities (“Group”), for the year ended 30
June 2020.

It has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations, other
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001.
Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards ensures that the financial statements and notes of the Group
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”). Consequently, this financial report has been prepared in accordance with and complies with IFRS as
issued by the IASB.

All amounts are presented in Australian dollars, unless otherwise stated.

The Company is a company limited by shares incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Its shares are listed for trading on
the ASX with a ticker code PAC. It is a for-profit entity for financial reporting purposes under the Australian Accounting
Standards.

a. Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the relevant
accounting policies.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share based payment transactions
that are within the scope of AASB 2 ‘Share based Payments’, leasing transactions that are within the scope of AASB 16
‘Leases’ and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as value in use in AASB
136 ‘Impairment of Assets’ (Refer to Notes 21 and 22).

b. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this financial report are contained within the notes to which
they relate. The accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

c. Going concern

This general-purpose financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis. The Group also assessed the impact
of COVID-19 in its ability to continue as a going concern which is further discussed in paragraph e. below. While the
Group’s results during the year is a statutory loss of $16,289,000, the Group will be able to meet its debts as and when
they become due and payable. The Group maintained solvency throughout the year with strong cash generation, cash
from operating activities during the year of $25,620,000 against net cash used in operating activities in prior year of
$2,364,000.
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PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

d. Comparatives

The accounting policies adopted by the Group in the preparation and presentation of the financial statements have
been consistently applied, except for the impact of the implementation of AASB 16 (Refer to Note 27). Where
necessary, comparative information has been reclassified, repositioned, and restated for consistency with current year
disclosures.

e. Critical accounting estimates, judgments, and assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Management continually
evaluates its estimates and judgments in relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses.
Management bases its estimates and judgments on historical information and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have an impact on the Group. All estimates, judgments and assumptions made are believed to
be reasonable based on the most current set of circumstances available to management. Actual results may differ
from the estimates, judgments, and assumptions.

Significant estimates, judgments and assumptions made by management in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are outlined below:

- Revenue recognition of performance fees— refer to Note 1c;

- Income tax, tax basis for USA investments and recovery of deferred tax assets — refer to Note 4c;

- Impairment of trade and other receivables — refer to Note 9c;

- Valuation of financial assets at fair value and impairment of financial assets at amortised cost — refer to Note
10c and Note 18f;

- Lease terms and incremental borrowing rate— refer to Note 11c;

- Provision for estimated liability to Hareon — refer to Note 13c;

- Valuation of financial liabilities at fair value — refer to Note 14c and Note 18f;

- Impairment of goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets — refer to Note 21c;

- Impairment of investments in associates and a joint venture — refer to Note 22d; and

- Share-based payment transactions — refer to Note 25c.

f. Coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) impact

In late 2019, COVID-19 began spreading. On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 a
global pandemic.

The COVID-19 pandemic has severely impacted, and will likely continue to severely impact, global health, social, and
economic conditions. This has resulted in slowing global economic growth; substantial volatility in financial markets;
increased unemployment; and daily working and living challenges such as restricted travel and social interaction. The
Group has considered the impact of COVID-19 and other market volatility in preparing its financial statements.

The economic uncertainty impacted not only equity markets but also other financial markets. As changes in the
availability and pricing of certain asset classes occurred, the ability of some of the Group’s portfolio companies to
invest and trade these assets was impacted. This subsequently delays the ability of these portfolio companies to
generate performance fees.

With the general uncertainty in markets and the restricted ability to interact and travel, the prospect for several of our
portfolio companies to raise new funds and attract new investors has been delayed. As the value of these portfolio
companies is a function of their ongoing growth profile, these delays impact on the resulting valuations.

In addition to the specific areas of judgement identified by the Group in the above section, the impact of COVID-19
resulted in the consideration and application of further judgement in those identified areas.

20



PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Considerations applied:

As a consequence of COVID-19 in the preparation of the Group’s financial statements, management had considered
the following:

- Assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the long term forecasts of the Group’s portfolio companies and
updating its economic outlook primarily on inputs into the impairment and fair value analysis of the Group’s
financial and non-financial asset classes and financial liabilities including disclosures such as fair value
disclosures of financial assets and liabilities;

- Assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the long term forecasts that may impact the recoverability of the
Group’s deferred tax assets;

- Reviewed whether there were any additional areas of judgement or estimation in addition to what have been
disclosed in section e above;

- Evaluation of trade and other receivables and financial assets at amortised costs for collectability and expected
credit losses; and

- Consideration of the impact of COVID-19 to the Company as a going concern (refer to Section A(c)).

g. Rounding of amounts

The Group is of a kind referred to in ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors reports) Instrument 2016/191,
issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission, relating to the “rounding off” of amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. Amounts in the consolidated financial statements have been rounded off in
accordance with that Instrument to the nearest thousand dollars, or in certain cases, to the nearest dollar.

21



PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

B. GROUP RESULTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

This section provides information regarding the results and performance of the Group during the year, including
further details on revenue, other income, gains on sale of investments and changes in fair values of financial assets and
liabilities, expenses, income tax, segment information, earnings per share and reconciliation of cashflows.

1. Revenue

a. Analysis of balances

The Group derives its revenue from the transfer of services over time and at a point in time as below:

2020 2019
$’000 $’000
Timing of revenue recognition
Over time
- Fund management fees 28,754 32,683
- Performance fees 2,645 2,617
- Commission revenue 3,999 5,316
- Retainer revenue 313 751
- Service fees 30 65
- Sundry revenue - 3

35,741 41,435

At a point in time

- Sundry revenue 70 66
Total revenue 35,811 41,501
b. Accounting policies
(i) Fund management fees

The revenue is recognised over time in the accounting period in which the asset management services are rendered
and the performance obligation is met. The transaction price for fund management fees for each performance
obligation is the defined contractual rate of the average assets under management or committed capital for the
relevant accounting period.

The relevant Investment Management Agreement contains a series of performance obligations relating to the
provision of asset management services to the underlying funds and mandates. A performance obligation within the
series is identified as the performance of asset management and associated record management for monthly
reporting. This performance obligation is repeated monthly for the term of the contract and as such the contract
meets the definition of a series of obligations. The performance obligation is satisfied over the month when services
have been provided to the client.

(i) Performance fees

Performance fees arise when the performance of the asset under management exceeds a threshold. As the services
provided under the Investment Management Agreement constitute a series of performance obligations performed on
a monthly basis, subject to performance of the asset under management, the Group may meet those obligations
throughout the term of the contract. However, as the performance fee is contingent on the performance of the funds
under management for the full period of the contract, the revenue cannot be recognised, as it is not highly probable
that this revenue will not be reversed.

Performance fees are only recognised every end of the financial year of the controlled entity when the performance
fees are realised and no significant reversal will occur.
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The performance fee is calculated in accordance with the calculation methodology of the underlying funds as defined
in the relevant agreements.

(iii) Commission revenue

Commission revenue arises when the Group provides sales services to its clients. The Group is entitled to a trail
commission over three years in accordance with the Sales and Marketing Services Agreement when the client has
invested in the funds or mandates of the asset managers and performance obligations have been met. The transaction
price is the gross revenue generated from the mandate multiplied by the contractual rates.

The relevant Sales and Marketing Services Agreement contains a series of performance obligations relating to sales
and marketing support services. A performance obligation within the series is identified as the performance of sales
and marketing support. This performance obligation is repeated monthly for the term of the contract and as such the
contract meets the definition of a series of obligations. The performance obligation is satisfied over the month when
services have been provided to the client.

As the commission revenue correlates to the gross revenues of the mandates, the revenue cannot be recognised on a
straight-line basis. The revenue is only recognised in the period where the gross management fees generated from the
mandates and it is not highly probable that this revenue will not be significantly reversed.

If the mandate with the asset manager is lost within the three-year period, the commission revenue will cease from
the time the mandate is lost.

(iv)  Retainer revenue

Retainer revenue arises when the Group provides distribution services. The revenue is recognised in the accounting
period in which the service is rendered and the performance obligation has been met and it is not highly probable that
this revenue will not be significantly reversed. The transaction price for each performance obligation is based on the
fixed amount of the consideration in the contract for the relevant accounting period.

The relevant Sales and Marketing Services Agreement contains a series of performance obligations relating to sales
and marketing support services. A performance obligation within the series is identified as the performance of sales
and marketing support. This performance obligation is repeated monthly for the term of the contract and as such the
contract meets the definition of a series of obligations. The performance obligation is satisfied over the month when
services have been provided to the client.

(v) Service fees

Service fees arise when the Group provides accounting and finance services to its related parties. The revenue is
recognised in the accounting period in which the service is rendered and the performance obligation is met. The
transaction price for each performance obligation is based on the amount of the consideration in the contract for the
relevant accounting period.

The relevant Service Agreement contains a series of performance obligations relating to the provision of accounting
and administration services. A performance obligation within the series is identified as the performance of accounting
and administration services and associated record management for monthly reporting. This performance obligation is
repeated monthly for the term of the contract and as such the contract meets the definition of a series of obligations.
The performance obligation is satisfied over the month when services have been provided to the client.

c. Key estimates, judgments, and assumptions

Revenue recognition of performance fees

Performance fees are only recognised by the Group when it is highly probable that the revenue will not be reversed.
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)¢

2. Other income, gains on sale of investments and changes in fair values of financial assets and liabilities
a. Analysis of balances
2020 2019
$’000 $’000
Distributions and dividend income:
- Financial assets at FVTPL 13,444 6,452
- Financial assets at FVTOCI 11,827 13,399
25,271 19,851
Sundry income:
Interest income:
- Other persons/corporations 472 1,286
- Related party 40 -
512 1,286
Earn-out income - 128
Sundry income 1,132 87
Total other income 1,644 1,501
(Loss) on derecognition of financial assets
(Loss) on derecognition of financial asset at amortised cost to
investment in associate (refer to Note 22a(iii)) (863) -
Gain on sale of investments
Gain on sale of associates - 73,003
Gain on sale of financial assets at FVTPL - 10
Total gain on sale of investments - 73,013
Changes in fair values of financial assets and liabilities:
Financial assets through profit or loss 11,258 (91)
Financial liabilities through profit or loss (1,510) (414)
Total changes in fair values of financial assets and liabilities through profit or loss 9,748 (505)

b. Accounting policies

(i) Distributions and dividend income

Distribution and dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment has been

established and the amount can be reliably measured.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis, taking into account the effective yield of the financial asset.

(iii)  Gain or loss on sale on disposal of investments

Gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which the transaction is

concluded. The value is determined as the difference between the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities being
derecognised or disposed and the fair value of the consideration received.

(iv)  Changes in fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Refer to Note 10 and Note 14, respectively for the accounting policies.
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3. Expenses
a. Analysis of balances
2020 2019
$’000 $’000
Salaries and employee benefits:
- Salaries and employee benefits 20,682 23,104
- Share-based payment expense 961 1,016
Total salaries and employee benefits 21,643 24,120
Impairment expenses:
- Impairment of capital contributions:
- Nereus Holdings LP (“Nereus”) 709 542
- Impairment of investment in associates (refer to Note 22):
- Alphashares, LLC - 360
- Blackcrane Capital, LLC (“Blackcrane”) 2,833 1,883
- Freehold Investment Management Limited (“FIM”) 115 671
- IFP Group, LLC (“IFP”) 908 -
- Victory Park Capital Advisors, LLC (“VPC”) 14,307 -
- Victory Park Capital GP Holdco, L.P. (“VPC-Holdco”) 3,631 -
21,794 2,914
- Impairment of goodwill in subsidiaries (refer to Note 21):
- Aether Investment Partners, LLC (“Aether”) 8,206 1,590
- Seizert Capital Partners, LLC (“Seizert”) 22,638 24,353

30,844 25,943

- Impairment of financial assets:

- Trade and other receivables (refer to Note 9) 63 -
- Financial assets at amortised cost (refer to Note 10) 54 -
117 -
Total impairment expenses 53,464 29,399
Administration and general expenses
- Accounting and audit fees 1,979 2,866
- Broker and consulting fees?! - 1,310
- Commission and marketing expenses 2,633 1,819
- Computer and software maintenance expenses 1,036 856
- Deal costs 2,819 1,201
- Directors’ fees 646 610
- Insurance expense 1,449 1,476
- Lease expenses? 298 1,089
- Legal, compliance and professional fees 1,790 1,806
- Net foreign exchange loss 1,190 1,070
- Provision for estimated liability to Hareon Solar Singapore Pvt Ltd (refer to Note 13) 4,405 7,688
- Share registry and regulatory fees 179 182
- Taxes and license fees 990 952
- Travel and accommodation costs 872 1,338
- Other general expenses 540 1,088
Total administration and general expenses 20,826 25,351
Notes:

! The broker and consulting fees pertained to the cost of services of an external party to identify suitable investors for the two operating solar PV
generation plants of Nereus.

2 The current year lease expenses relate to short term and low value leases whereas the prior year contains the total operating lease expense prior
to the adoption of AASB 16.
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Depreciation and amortisation expense:
- Depreciation of plant and equipment
- Amortisation of right of-use-asset (refer to Note 11a(i))
- Amortisation of management rights (refer to Note 21)

Total depreciation and amortisation expense
Interest expense:
- Notes payable - Seizert

- Lease liabilities (refer to Note 11a(ii))
- Other

Total interest expenses
Total expenses

b. Accounting policies

(i) Expenses

)¢

2020 2019
$’000 $’000

356 368

691 -

3,279 2,624

4,326 2,992

244 587

176 -

- 61

420 648

100,679 82,510

Expenses are recognised at the fair value of the consideration paid or payable for services or goods received.

(ii) Impairment expenses

Refer to Note 9, Note 10, Note 21 and Note 22 for the accounting policies.
(iii)  Foreign exchange (gain)/loss

Refer to Note 20(ii) for the accounting policies.

(iv)  Amortisation expenses

Refer to Note 11b and Note 21b for the accounting policies.

(v) Interest expense

Interest expense is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.
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4, Income tax

a. Analysis of balances

Income tax (benefit)/expense

Components of income tax (benefit)/expense:
- Current tax
- Deferred tax
- Under/over provision in prior years

Total income tax (benefit)/expense recognised in profit or loss

Reconciliation of income tax expense recognised in profit or loss to prima facie income tax

(Loss)/profit before income tax
Prima facie income tax expense at 30% (2019: 30%)

Add / (deduct) the tax effect of:
- Non-deductible foreign expenses
- Capital loss on disposal
- Share-based payments
- Tax losses not carried forward
- Impact of difference in tax rates in other countries
- Tax losses utilised
- USA state income taxes
- Franking credits received
- Non-assessable income
- Non-deductible foreign currency losses
- Other
- Under/over provision of income tax from prior years

Income tax benefit/(expense) attributable to profit

Net deferred income tax liabilities recognised in income tax (benefit)/expense
- Investments
- Retention payments
- Dividend receivable
- Earn-out liability
- Deductible capital expenditures
- Accruals and provisions
- Impact of AASB 16: ‘Leases’ (“AASB 16”) implementation
- Unrealised foreign exchange

Deferred income tax related to items charged or credited directly to equity
- Movement of the Group’s investment revaluation reserve
- Movement of the Group’s share capital
- Movement of the Group’s retained earnings

)¢

2020 2019
$’000 $’000
375 14,220
(11,170) 708
(233) 151
(11,028) 15,079
(27,317) 53,969
(8,195) 16,190
1,074 1,931
306 -
288 305
88 -
(2,631) (5,515)
(306) -
(1,146) 1,907
(244) (103)
(236) (237)
- 491
207 (41)
(233) 151
11,028  (15,079)
(8,242) (96)
(1,533) (1,495)
(795) 824
(386) -
(335) 376
190 1,072
(39) -
(30) 27
(11,170) 708
(10,655) (1,762)
152 -
(1) -
(10,504) (1,762)
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2020 2019
$’000 $’000
Tax losses not recognised
- Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised 802 507
- Potential tax benefit at 30% and 19% (2019: 19%) 185 96

The unused tax losses were incurred during the year by the parent entity in Australia in respect to revenue losses of
$294,000 and $507,000 by a controlled entity in the UK in respect to the disposal of its investment.

Current tax assets
Income tax receivable?! 2,792 2,789

Current tax liabilities
Provision for income tax? 612 3,329

Notes:
! The income tax receivable is the estimated receivable in the USA (2019: USA).
2 The provision for income tax consisted of the estimated income tax liability in the UK (2019: $2,372,000 in Australia and $957,000 in the UK).

Non-current liabilities — net deferred tax liabilities
Components of net deferred tax liabilities:

- Liabilities:
- Investments 10,811 6,211
- Dividend receivable 30 824
- Retention payments - 1,533
10,841 8,568
- Assets
- Adjustment on financial liabilities at FVTPL (2,993) (107)
- Deductible capital expenditures (1,055) (707)
- Accruals and provisions (108) (410)
- Impact of AASB 16 implementation (37) -
- Unrealised foreign exchange loss (5) 27
(4,198) (1,197)
Net deferred tax liabilities 6,643 7,371
b. Accounting policies

The income tax (benefit)/expense for the year comprises current income tax (benefit)/expense and deferred tax
expense/(benefit).

Current income tax expense charged to the profit or loss is the tax payable on taxable income measured at the
amounts expected to be paid to or recovered from the relevant taxation authority.

Deferred income tax expense reflects movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability balances during the
year as well as unused tax losses.

Current and deferred income tax (benefit)/expense is charged or credited outside profit or loss when the tax relates to
items that are recognised outside profit or loss.

Except for business combinations, no deferred income tax is recognised from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability, where there is no effect on accounting or taxable profit or loss.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled and their measurement also reflects the manner in which management
expects to recover or settle the carrying amount of the related asset or liability.

Deferred tax assets relating to temporary differences and unused tax losses are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the benefits of the deferred tax asset can be utilised.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set off exists and it is intended that net
settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and liability will occur. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are offset where: (a) a legally enforceable right of set off exists; and (b) the deferred tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities where it is intended that net settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective
asset and liability will occur in future periods in which significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities are
expected to be recovered or settled.

c. Key estimates, judgments and assumptions
(i) Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the jurisdictions in which it operates. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are a number of transactions and calculations undertaken during the
ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax determination may differ from the taxation authorities’ view.
The Group recognises the impact of the anticipated tax liabilities based on the Group's current understanding of the
tax laws. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the carrying amounts, such differences will
impact the current and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

(ii) Tax basis for USA investments

The Group determines its tax obligation in the event of liquidation and/or disposal of its USA investments. This is
calculated by determining the tax basis and tax basis adjustments as permitted under the USA Internal Revenue Code.
The tax basis adjustments involved an estimation of the additional tax basis specific to the USA investments.

The tax calculated at the Group level is also dependent on the notification of allocated taxable income by the USA
investments that are deemed as partnerships in the USA. The amount of taxable income allocated from such
partnerships to the Group may be subject to judgement and hence be amended in future periods.

(iii)  Recovery of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences only if the Group considers it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences.

(iv) Taxlosses not recognised

A deferred tax asset in relation to tax losses is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the
basis of available evidence, it can be regarded as probable that there will be suitable taxable profits against which to
recover the losses and from which the future reversal of underlying timing differences can be deducted. Deferred tax
assets in relation to tax losses in Australia and the UK have not been recognised on the basis that there remains
uncertainty regarding the timing and quantum of the generation of taxable profits.
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d. Tax consolidation and status in other jurisdictions

(i) Tax status of the Company in Australia

The Company and its wholly-owned Australian subsidiaries formed a tax consolidated group for income tax purposes.
The Company is the head entity of the tax consolidated group. Members of the tax consolidated group have entered
into a tax sharing arrangement in order to allocate income tax expense to the wholly-owned entities on a pro-rata
basis. Under a tax funding agreement, each member of the tax consolidated group is responsible for funding their
share of any tax liability. In addition, the agreement provides for the allocation of income tax liabilities between the
entities should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations. At the balance date, the possibility of default is
remote.

(i) Tax status of the Company in the USA

The Group’s investments in the USA are pass-through vehicles for tax purposes. The tax on earnings will be paid for by
Company as the ultimate entity liable for the tax obligations in the USA.

e. Uncertainty over income tax treatments
The tax calculated at the Group level is dependent on the notification of allocated taxable income by investments in the
USA deemed as pass-through vehicles for tax purposes. The amount of taxable income allocated from such partnerships

to the Group may be subject to judgement and hence be amended in future periods.

Other than the above, the group’s income taxes provision does not currently include any tax treatments for which there
is uncertainty over whether the relevant taxation authority will accept the tax treatment under law.

30



PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

5. Segment information
a. Reportable segments

Information reported to the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) as chief operating decision maker (“CODM”)
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of performance is focused on the profit/(loss) for the year earned
by each segment.

The Group’s segment reporting is categorised on the following criteria:

- Tier 1 boutiques — investments where the Group expects at least $4,000,000 of annual earnings; and
- Tier 2 boutiques — investments where the Group expects less than $4,000,000 of annual earnings.

For subsequent segment reporting purposes, transfer from/to Tier 1 boutiques to/from Tier 2 boutiques will be based
on either of the following:

- their annual earnings contribution for two consecutive reporting periods. For example, an investment with an
earnings contribution of $4,000,000 in the first reporting period and $3,000,000 in the second reporting period
will still be classified as a Tier 1 boutique since one of its two reporting periods has an earnings contribution of
$4,000,000; or

- assessment of the Board that the category of a particular investment be amended because of a substantial loss of
FUM and significant decline in the contribution to the Group.

The Group’s categorisation of its reportable segments under AASB 8: ‘Operating Segments’ are as follows:

2020 2019
Segment Segment
Category Category

Aether Investment Partners, LLC and Aether General Partners Tier 1 Tier 1
Blackcrane Capital, LLC Tier 2 Tier 2
Capital & Asset Management Group, LLP Tier 2 Tier 2
Carlisle Management Company S.C.A. (“Carlisle”) Tier 1 Tier 1
EAM Global Investors, LLC (“EAM Global”) Tier 2 Tier 2
GQG Partners, LLC (“GQG”) Tier 1 Tier 1
IFP Group, LLC Tier 2 Tier 2
Nereus Holdings, L.P. Tier 2 Tier 2
Northern Lights Alternative Advisors, LLP Tier 2 Tier 2
Roc Group Tier 2 Tier 2
Seizert Capital Partners, LLC Tier 21 Tier 1
Strategic Capital Investments, LLP Tier 2 Tier 2
Victory Park Capital Advisors, LLC and Tier 1 Tier 1
Victory Park Capital GP Holdco, L.P. (“VPC-Holdco”) Tier 1 Tier 1
Acquired during the year
Pennybacker Capital Management, LLC Tier 2 -
Proterra Investment Partners, LP Tier 1 -
Disposed during the year/prior year
AlphaShares, LLC Tier 2 Tier 2
Aperio Group, LLC - Tier 1
Celeste Funds Management Limited - Tier 2
Freehold Investment Management Limited Tier 2 Tier 2
RARE Infrastructure Ltd - Tier 2

Notes:
1 At 1July 2019, the Board assessed that Seizert be categorised from Tier 1 to Tier 2 boutique on the basis that there were substantial losses of FUM
and significant decline in the contribution to the Group.
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b. Analysis of balances

(i) Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenues and results by reportable segments. The results reflect the
elimination of intragroup transactions including those between the Group and its boutiques.

Segment revenue

Share of net profits of

Segment (loss)/profit for

associates and joint the year
venture
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Tier 1 boutiques 19,619 36,224 1,047 405 16,726 2,471
Tier 2 boutiques 16,175 4,972 704 713 (25,443) (3,517)
35,794 41,196 1,751 1,118 (8,717) (1,046)
Central administration 17 305 - - (7,572) 39,936
Total per consolidated
statement of profit or loss 35,811 41,501 1,751 1,118 (16,289) 38,890
The following details of segment revenue:
Central
Tier 1 Tier 2 administra-
boutiques boutiques tion Total
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
2020
Over time
- Fund management fees 16,262 12,492 - 28,754
- Performance fees - 2,645 - 2,645
- Commission revenue 3,193 789 17 3,999
- Retainer revenue 164 149 - 313
- Service fees - 30 - 30
- Sundry revenue - - - -
19,619 16,105 17 35,741
At a point in time
- Sundry revenue - 70 - 70
19,619 16,175 17 35,811
2019
Over time
- Fund management fees 31,232 1,451 - 32,683
- Performance fees - 2,617 - 2,617
- Commission revenue 4,385 692 239 5,316
- Retainer revenue 607 144 - 751
- Service fees - 65 - 65
- Sundry revenue - 3 - 3
36,224 4,972 239 41,435
At a point in time
- Sundry revenue - - 66 66
36,224 4,972 305 41,501
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The following details segment profit after tax for the year for central administration:

2020 2019
$’000 $’000
Revenue 17 305
Other income 683 1,587
Gain on sale of investments? - 73,013
Changes in fair values of financial assets and liabilities 235 (505)
935 74,400
Salaries and employee benefits (7,155) (10,191)
Impairment expenses (60) -
Administration and general expenses (11,583) (8,823)
Depreciation and amortisation expense (666) (310)
Interest expense (71) (61)
(19,535) (19,385)
Income tax (expense)/benefit 11,028 (15,079)
(7,572) 39,936
Notes:
! The gain on sale of investments and the related income tax expense are classified under central administration.
(ii) Segment assets and liabilities
Segment assets Segment liabilities Segment net assets
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Tier 1 boutiques 344,469 322,672 27,111 28,808 317,358 293,864
Tier 2 boutiques 77,161 24,759 11,011 9,283 66,150 15,476
420,106 347,431 38,122 38,091 383,508 309,340
Central administration? 18,167 83,750 (884) 9,563 19,051 74,187
Total per consolidated
statement of financial
position 439,797 431,181 37,238 47,654 402,559 383,527
Notes:
! The total assets and liabilities under central administration consisted of the following:
Segment assets Segment liabilities
2020 2019 2020 2019
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Cash and cash equivalents 7,431 66,566 Trade and other payables 2,730 4,731
Trade and other receivables 54 30 Provisions 557 700
Income tax receivable 2,792 2,789 Financial liabilities - 500
Other financial assets 5,446 12,218 Lease liabilities 979 -
Plant and equipment 756 1,006 Provision for income tax 612 3,329
Right-of-use assets 637 - Net deferred tax (assets)/liabilities (5,762) 303
Other assets 1,051 1,141
Total 18,167 83,750 Total (884) 9,563
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(iii)  Other segment information

2020 2019
$’000 $’000
Impairment expense of segments
- Tier 1 boutiques 26,143 25,943
- Tier 2 boutiques 27,261 3,456
- Central administration 60 -
Total 53,464 29,399
Depreciation and amortisation of segments
- Tier 1 boutiques 3,442 2,679
- Tier 2 boutiques 217 3
- Central administration 667 310
Total 4,326 2,992
(iv)  Geographical information
Revenues and results
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Central Central
Tier 1 Tier2  adminis- Tier 1 Tier2 adminis-
boutiques boutiques tration Total boutiques boutiques tration Total
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000  $’000 $’000
Revenues
- Australia - 106 - 106 - 3 (11) (8)
- USA 19,619 12,978 17 32,614 36,224 836 316 37,376
- UK - 3,091 - 3,091 - 4,133 - 4,133
- Luxembourg - - - - - - - -
- India - - - - - - - -
19,619 16,175 17 35,811 36,224 4,972 305 41,501
Share in net profits/(losses)
- Australia - 1,268 - 1,268 - 373 - 373
- USA 1,047 (94) - 953 405 677 - 1,082
- UK - (470) - (470) - (337) - (337)
- Luxembourg - - - - - - - -
- India - - - - - - - -
1,047 704 - 1,751 405 713 - 1,118
Profit/(loss) after tax
- Australia (622) 1,014 (6,872) (6,480) (1,612) 1,367 (7,435) (7,680)
- USA (4,627) (23,369) (186) (28,182) (706) 1,651 48,351 49,296
- UK - 2,026 (514) 1,512 - 3,005 (980) 2,025
- Luxembourg 21,975 - - 21,975 4,789 - - 4,789
- India - (5,114) - (5,114) - (9,540) - (9,540)
16,726 (25,443) (7,572) (16,289) 2,471 (3,517) 39,936 38,890

Other than the US, no other country represents more than 10% of revenue for the Group (2019: USA and UK). Other

than ARA Fund V (2019: GQG), no individual customer represents more than 10% revenue for the Group.




PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Non-current assets excluding financial assets

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Central Central
Tier 1 Tier2  adminis- Tier 1 Tier2 adminis-
boutiques boutiques tration Total boutiques boutiques tration Total
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Investment in associates
and joint venture
- Australia - 7,827 - 7,827 - 1,544 - 1,544
- USA 83,196 38,394 - 121,590 100,705 5,031 - 105,736
- UK - 4,189 - 4,189 - 2,863 - 2,863
- Luxembourg - - - - - - - -
- India - - - - - - - -
83,196 50,410 - 133,606 100,705 9,438 - 110,143
Plant and equipment
- Australia - - 98 98 - - 190 190
- USA 105 70 658 833 200 - 816 1,016
- UK - 1 - 1 - 2 - 2
- Luxembourg - - - - - - - -
- India - - - - - - - -
105 71 756 932 200 2 1,006 1,208
Right-of-use assets
- Australia - - 286 286 - - - -
- USA 438 1,021 351 1,810 - - - -
- UK _ _ — —_ — _ — —
- Luxembourg - - - - - - - -
- India - - - - - - - -
438 1,022 637 2,096 - - - -
Intangible assets
- Australia - - - - - - - -
- USA 60,197 2,535 - 62,732 94,094 - - 94,094
- UK _ _ — — —_ _ _ —
- Luxembourg - - - - - - - -
- India - - - - - - - -
60,197 2,535 - 62,732 94,094 - - 94,094
Total non-current assets excluding financial assets
- Australia - 7,827 384 8,211 - 1,544 190 1,734
- USA 143,936 42,020 1,009 186,965 194,999 5,031 816 200,846
- UK - 4,190 - 4,190 - 2,865 - 2,865
- Luxembourg - - - - - - - -
- India - - - - - - - -
143,936 54,037 1,393 199,366 194,999 9,440 1,006 205,445

b. Accounting policies

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment profit
represents the profit after tax earned by each segment without allocation of central administration costs. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.
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6. (Loss)/earnings per share

The following reflects the income and share data used in the calculations of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share:

2020 2019

Basic (loss)/earnings per share:
Net (loss)/profit attributable to the members of the Company ($’000) (17,509) 37,612
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share 48,797,128 47,642,367
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (cents) (35.88) 78.95
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share:
Net (loss)/profit attributable to the members of the Company ($’000) (17,509) 37,227
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted earnings per share 48,797,128 47,642,367
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (cents) (35.88) 78.14
Reconciliation of (losses)/earnings used in calculating (loss)/earnings per share:
Net (loss)/profit attributable to the members of the Company used in the calculation of

basic earnings per share ($’000) (17,509) 37,612
Add: Adjustment on the impact on the dilution effect of the performance rights? - (385)
Net (loss)/profit attributable to the members of the Company used in the calculation of

diluted (loss)/earnings per share ($’000) (17,509) 37,227

Reconciliation of weighted average number of ordinary shares in calculating earnings
per share:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic and diluted earnings per share 48,797,128 47,642,367

Notes:

! The 30 June 2020 impact of the outstanding performance rights was not included in the calculation of the diluted (loss)/earnings per share since

the Group reported a loss. Therefore, the impact became anti-dilutive.

a. Accounting policies

Basic earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the Company, divided by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated as net profit or loss attributable to members of the parent, including, if any:

- the after-tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that have been

recognised as expenses/income;

- other non-discretionary changes in revenues or expenses during the period that would result from the dilution of

potential ordinary shares; and

- divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilutive potential ordinary shares, adjusted for any

bonus if any.
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7. Notes to consolidated statement of cash flows

a. Analysis of balances

(i) Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with (loss)/profit after income tax

(Loss)/profit from ordinary activities after income tax

Adjustments and non-cash items:
- Impairment of assets
- Dividends received/receivable from associates and joint venture
- Projected Settlement of Hareon Liability
- Depreciation and amortisation expense
- Non-operating foreign exchange transactions
- Share-based payments
- Loss on conversion of financial asset at amortised cost to investment in associate
- Changes in fair values of financial assets and liabilities
- Share of net (profit) from associates and joint venture
- Non-operating interest income
- Non-operating interest expense
- Gain on sale of investments
- Other

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
- (Increase) in trade and other receivables
- Decrease in other assets
- (Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables
- Net (decrease) in current taxes
- Net (decrease)/increase in deferred taxes
- (Decrease)/increase in provisions

Cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities
(ii) Non-cash investing and financing activities

Investing activities:
- Increase in investment in CFL
- Recognition of right-of-use assets
- Impact of AASB 16 sublease receivables
- Recognition of management rights

Financing activities:
- Recognition of lease liabilities
- Recognition of earn-out liabilities

)¢

2020 2019
$’000 $’000
(16,289) 38,890
53,402 29,399
5,206 5,716
4,405 -
4,325 2,992
2,325 373
961 1,016
863 -
(9,748) 505
(1,751) (1,118)
135 (240)
(339) (196)
- (73,013
(185) (135)
(2,072) (3,674)
195 292
(1,664) 976
(2,568)  (12,328)
(11,385) 156
(196) 8,025
25,620 (2,364)
(4,552) -
(2,730) -
(62) -
- (12,214)
(7,344)  (12,214)
2,779 -
4,552 12,214
7,331 12,214
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C. OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

This section provides information regarding the operating assets and liabilities of the Group as at end of the year,

including further details on cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, other financial assets, right-of-use

assets and related lease liabilities, trade and other payables and provisions.

8. Cash and cash equivalents
a. Analysis of balances
2020 2019
$’000 $’000
- Cash at bank 20,153 80,231
- Cash on hand 1 1
20,154 80,232
b. Accounting policies

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash consist of cash and cash equivalents.

For short-term deposits with an original maturity of more than three months but less than one year, these are
classified separately as short-term deposits.
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9. Trade and other receivables
a. Analysis of the balances
2020 2019
$’000 $’000
Current
Trade receivables 4,386 5,742
Contract assets 479 899
Dividend receivable 9,942 6,165
Sundry receivables 73 3
14,880 12,809
Loss allowance for expected credit losses (43) -

14,837 12,809

Non-current
Trade receivables 283 -

(i) Impairment

The Group applies the AASB 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and other receivables. The loss allowance for trade receivables and
contract assets and dividend and sundry receivables as at 30 June 2020 was determined as follows:

Past due Past due Past due
Current 31-60days 61-90days over 90 days Total

2020

Expected loss rate 0.050% 0.050% 2.564% 5.263%

Gross carrying amount (S) 3,643,000 822,000 - 683,000 5,148,000
Loss allowance (S) 1,822 411 - 35,944 38,177
Dividend and sundry receivables (S) 5,053
Total loss allowance ($) 43,230
2019

Expected loss rate 0.050% 0.050% 2.564% 5.263%

Gross carrying amount ($’000) 5,203,000 948,000 7,000 483,000 6,641,000
Loss allowance ($) 2,602 474 144 25,423 28,643
Dividend and sundry receivables ($) 3,083
Total loss allowance ($) 31,726

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the expected credit losses were recognised. In the prior year, the expected credit
losses for trade and other receivables was considered immaterial, no impairment provision was recognised.

Movement of the loss allowance for expected credit losses:

2020 2019

$’000 $’000
Opening balance - -
Additions (Refer to Note 3) 63 -
Written-off (20) -
Ending balance 43 -
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b. Accounting policies

Trade receivables, which are generally on 30 days terms, are recognised at fair value and subsequently valued at
amortised cost, less any allowance for uncollectible amounts. Cash flows relating to short term receivables are not
discounted as any discount would be immaterial.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled asset management and
distribution services and have substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets. In determining the expected loss rates, the Group reviewed the
collection history, anticipated collection trend for the year and the credit worthiness of its counterparties. The Group’s
counterparties are institutional clients with high credit ratings with no known history of default.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators
that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make contractual payments for a period of greater than 90 days past
due.

c. Key estimates, judgments, and assumptions
Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group applied the AASB 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade and other receivables. The loss allowance was determined on the days past due and the
credit risk characteristics of the balances.

As a response to COVID-19, the Group undertook a review of its trade, dividends and other receivables and the
expected credit losses for each. The expected loss rates are then based on the payment profiles over a period of 36
months before 30 June 2020 and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are then adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on various factors affecting
the ability of the counterparties to settle the receivables including the review of their financial statements.
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10. Other financial assets

a. Analysis of the balances

Current
Financial assets at amortised cost:
- Receivable from EAM Investors, LLC (“EAM Investors”)?
- Sublease receivable (Refer to Note 27)
- Receivable from other party?
- Loans receivable from a third party

Financial assets at FVTPL:
- Receivable from Raven Capital Management, LLC (“Raven”)3

Non-current

Financial assets at amortised cost:
- Receivable from EAM Investors?
- Loans receivable from IFP (Refer to Note 22a(iii))
- Sublease receivable (Refer to Note 27)

Loss allowance for expected credit losses
Financial assets at FVTPL:

- Investment in Carlisle*
- Investment in Proterra®

- Investment in IFP — preferential distribution (Refer to Note 22a(iii))

- Receivable from Raven?

Financial assets at FVTOCI:
- Investment in GQG®
- Investment in EAM Global’
- Investment in IFP (Refer to Note 22a(iii))

Notes:

Type of
Instrument

Debt
Debt
Debt
Debt

Debt

Debt
Debt
Debt

Debt and Equity
Equity
Equity
Debt

Equity
Equity
Equity

)¢

2020 2019
$’000 $’000
731 731
290 293
- 5,108
- 48
1,021 6,180
1,227 1,338
2,248 7,518
1,361 1,869
679 -
153 314
2,193 2,183
(6) -
2,187 2,183
60,670 48,766
29,464 -
1,214 -
1,690 2,517
93,038 51,283
95,214 56,526
7,547 8,543
- 1,531
102,761 66,600
197,986 120,066

! The receivable from EAM Investors pertains to the financing of USD2,250,000 provided by the Group on 21 February 2018. The loan has a term of
six-years with interest of 10% per annum to assist EAM Investors in financing the repurchase of its equity from an outside shareholder.
Repayments are received on a quarterly basis and the loan is expected to be fully settled by EAM Investors in June 2024.

2

collected in October 2019.
3

The receivable from other party pertained to the remaining retention amount including interest held in escrow from the sale of the Group’s
investment in Investors Mutual Ltd. The escrow account was an interest-bearing corporate trust account held with an Australian bank. This was

The receivable from Raven pertains to the earn out component of the consideration on the sale of the investment on 14 October 2016. The Group

is paid 33.33% of the management fees earned by Raven on new FUM. Payments are calculated quarterly until the USD3,500,000 earn out cap is
met. During the year, the amount of USD855,000 (2019: USD435,000) was received and the balance of the earn-out was fair valued using a
discounted cash flows method at 6.68% (2019: 7.78%) with the related changes in fair value taken to profit or loss.

4

The investment in Carlisle pertains to the purchase of 12,500 Preferred Shares of Carlisle and 5,000,000 units of Contingent Convertible Bonds

(“CoCo Bonds”) issued by Carlisle. The Group is entitled to 16% of the revenues and 40% of the liquidation proceeds in the event of a sale.

Carlisle, founded in 2009, is a fully regulated alternative investment fund manager which manages alternative investment funds exclusively

investing in US life settlements. Carlisle is organised under the laws of Luxembourg as a partnership limited by shares (SCA or Société en

commandite par actions).
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The investment in Proterra pertains to the Group’s 16% equity interest in Proterra acquired on 21 September 2019. The Group is entitled to 8% of
the gross management revenues and 16% of the liquidation proceeds in the event of a sale. The fair value of the investment at 30 June 2020 was
net of the fair value of the earn-out obligation of $5,515,000.

Proterra is an alternative investment manager based in Minneapolis, Minnesota, the USA offering private equity investment strategies focused on
global natural resources.

This pertains to the Group’s 5% equity interest in GQG.

GQG was formed in April 2016, organised as a Delaware Limited Liability Company and is registered with the USA Securities and Exchange
Commission. GQG is an investment advisor and provides investment advisory and asset management services to a number of investment funds
and managed accounts for USA and Non-USA investors. GQG manages global international and emerging markets public equity strategies.

This pertains to the Group’s 18.75% equity interest in EAM Global.

EAM Global was founded in March 2014, organised as a Delaware Limited Liability Company and is registered with the USA Securities and
Exchange Commission. EAM manages emerging markets small cap, international small cap and international micro-cap public equities strategies.
EAM Global generates the majority of its revenues by providing advisory services to domestic customers. Fees for such services are asset based
and as a result, its revenues are variable and subject to market volatility.

(i) Impairment of other financial assets at amortised cost

Applying the expected credit loss model for other financial assets at amortised cost resulted to a loss of $6,000 at 30
June 2020 (2019: $12,000).

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the expected credit losses were recognised. In the prior year, the expected credit
losses for other financial assets at amortised cost was considered immaterial, no impairment provision was recognised.

Movement of the loss allowance for expected credit losses:

2020 2019

$’000 $’000
Opening balance - -
Additions (Refer to Note 3) 54 -
Written-off (48) -
Ending balance 6 -

42



PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

(ii) Movement of financial assets at amortised cost
Additions
Impact of and Impair- Foreign
Opening application interest ment/ Reclassi-  currency Closing
balance  of AASB! accrued Collections Transfers? (loss) fications movement balance
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
2020
Current 6,180 (34) 279 (6,209) - (48) 832 21 1,021
Non-current 2,183 96 2,055 - (495) (869)3 (832) 49 2,187
8,363 62 2,334 (6,209) (495) (911) - 70 3,208
2019
Current - 6,045 380 (6,169) - - 5,890 34 6,180
Non-current - 7,858 62 - - - (5,890) 153 2,183
- 13,903 442 (6,169) - - - 187 8,363

Notes:

! Pertained to the impact of implementation of AASB 16 for the current year and AASB 9 in the prior year.
2 The transfers in financial assets at amortised cost pertained to the conversion of the loan into investment in an associate and transfer of interest

to interest receivable. Refer to Note 22a(iii) for details.
3 The balance consist of $863,000 loss on conversion of financial asset at amortised cost to investment in associate (refer to Note 22 for details) and

impairment of $6,000.

(iii) Movement of financial assets at FVTPL
Impact of Foreign
Opening application Collections Changein Reclassi- currency Closing
balance of AASB9 Additions /disposals fairvalue fications movement balance
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2020
Current 1,338 - - (1,276) - 1,135 30 1,227
Non-current 51,283 - 31,477 - 11,258 (1,135) 155 93,038

52,621 - 31,477 (1,276) 11,258 - 185 94,265
2019
Current - 2,836 - (619) - (1,033) 154 1,338
Non-current 21,500 1,494 47,038 (21,500) (91) 1,033 1,809 51,283

21,500 4,330 47,038 (22,119) (91) - 1,963 52,621

(iv) Movement of financial assets at FVTOCI
Transferred
Impact of to Foreign
Opening  application investment Change in currency Closing
balance of AASB9  Additions in associate fairvalue movement balance
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2020
Non-current 66,600 - 895 (3,786) 38,746 306 102,761
2019
Non-current - 53,616 1,515 - 8,390 3,079 66,600
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b. Accounting policies

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured at amortised cost and
- those to be measured subsequently at fair value, either through profit or loss or through other comprehensive
income.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

For financial assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or in other
comprehensive income. Forinvestments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group had made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.
(ii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

(ii.a) Debtinstruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Group classifies its debt
instruments:

(ii.a.1) At amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses), together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

(i.a.2) FVTOCI

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.
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(i.a.3) FVTPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

(ii.b) Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as dividend income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of FVTPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVTOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

(iii)  Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it
may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset (debt instrument) in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and the accumulated equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase
part of a transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the
part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts.

c. Key estimates, judgments, and assumptions

(i) Valuation of financial assets at fair value

The Group exercises significant judgement in areas that are highly subjective. The valuation of financial assets and the
assessment of carrying values require that a detailed assessment be undertaken which reflects assumptions on

markets, manager performance and expected growth to project future cash flows that are discounted at a rate that
imputes relative risk and cost of capital considerations. Refer to Note 18f for the fair value disclosures.

45



PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

(i) Impairment of financial assets at amortised cost

The loss allowances for financial assets at amortised cost are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation based on the Group’s past history, existing market conditions and forward-looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period.

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

In assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers the following
information:

- Significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk to which the fair value of the financial asset is
substantially lower than its amortised cost;

- Existing or expected changes in business, financial or economic conditions that will cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet it debt obligations;

- Actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; and

- Actual or expected adverse impact due to regulatory changes and issues that will result in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet it debt obligations.

The Group’s assessment of its debt instruments is detailed below:

- Receivable from EAM Investors — The Group provided financing for EAM Investors to acquire the equity from a
part owner WHV Investment, Inc. The loan is governed by the Secured Promissory Note deed whereby various
protective features are defined such as the maintenance of an escrow account to hold a reserve requirement,
quarterly repayments, reporting obligations including on the escrow account, and security over the units acquired
by EAM Investors. The Group is responsible for the sales and distribution of EAM Global and has visibility of the
growth and operations of EAM Global. The discounted cash flows of EAM Global at 30 June 2020 showed an
increase in revenues.

- Loans receivable from IFP — The Group provided interest bearing loans to IFP which matures no later than 31
December 2022. Management considered the credit risk to be low based on the projection provided by IFP.

- Sublease receivable — The Group subleased its Seattle office premises to a third party over seven years whereby
monthly lease payments from the sublessee are received. Management considered the credit risk to be low
based on the collection pattern, information available in the public domain and the sublessee’s reputation.

- Loans receivable from a third party — The Group provided interest bearing advances to the former principal of
AlphaShares, LLC. During the year, the Group determined that the debtor’s ability to pay the outstanding balance
is uncertain resulting in the recognition of a loss allowance for the full balance outstanding. At 30 June 2020, the
outstanding balance was written-off.

Impact of COVID-19

While the specific areas of judgement noted above did not change, the Group applied further judgement to consider
the impact of COVID-19 within those identified areas. Refer to Section A(f) for details.
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11.  Right-of-use assets and related lease liabilities

a. Analysis of balances

2020 2019
$’000 $’000
(i) Right-of-use assets
Non-Current
Office leases, net of accumulated amortisation 2,403 -
Equipment leases, net of accumulated amortisation 53 -
2,096 -
Office Equipment
Leases Leases Total
Movement of right-of-use assets $’000 $’000 $’000
2020
Cost
Opening balance - - -
Impact of AASB 16 2,656 76 2,732
Effect of foreign currency differences 42 2 44
Closing balance 2,698 78 2,776
Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance - - -
Amortisation (666) (25) (691)
Effect of foreign currency differences 11 - 11
Closing balance (655) (25) (680)
2,043 53 2,096
(i) Lease liabilities
2020 2019
$’000 $’000
Current 888 -
Non-current 1,658 -
2,546 -
Movement of lease liabilities
Foreign
currency
Opening Impact of Imputed Repay-  Reclassi- move- Closing
balance AASB 16 interest ments fication ment balance
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
2020
Current - 779 176 (982) 905 10 888
Non-current - 2,502 - - (905) 61 1,658
- 3,281 176 (982) - 71 2,546

47



PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

b. Accounting policies
(i) Right-of-use-assets and the related lease liabilities
The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for

The Group leases various offices and equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 5 to 12 years
but may have extension options as described in (iv) below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Until the financial year ended 30 June 2019, leases of property, plant and equipment were classified as either finance
or operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) were
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 July 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset with a corresponding liability at the date at which the

leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost.

The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

= fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

= variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

= amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

= the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

=  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

= the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

= any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

= any initial direct costs; and

= restoration costs.
(ii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. The Group’s low-value
assets pertained to leases with less than $25,000 gross amount.

(iii)  Variable lease payments

The Group does not have variable lease payments.
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(iv)  Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property leases across the Group. These terms are used
to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of extension and termination options
held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective lessor. There were no | lease payments made during
the year ended 30 June 2020 that were optional.

(v) Residual value guarantees

The Group does not provide any residual value guarantees in relation to equipment leases.
(vi)  Impact of AASB 16 to the Group’s associates and a joint venture

The impact of adopting AASB 16 on the Group’s associates have been recognised in the share of profits of associates
and joint venture with the statement of profit or loss and the investment in associates/joint venture within the
statement of financial position.

c. Key estimates, judgments, and assumptions
(i) Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to
exercise an extension option or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination
options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated). No
potential future cash outflows on extension of lease were included in the lease liability because it is not reasonably
certain that the leases will be extended (or not terminated).

The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which affects this
assessment and that is within the control of the lessee. During the period, no such circumstances occurred.

(ii) Determining the internal borrowing rate
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

= where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted
to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received;

= uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
individual entity of the Group, which does not have recent third-party financing, and

= makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

49



PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

12. Trade and other payables

a. Analysis of balances

2020 2019
$’000 $’000
Current
Trade payables 208 801
Accrued expenses 3,672 3,962
Other payables 1,905 2,743
5,785 7,506

b. Accounting policies

Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost and due to their short-term nature, they are not discounted.
They represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year that are
unpaid and arise when the Group becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of the goods

and services. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.
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13. Provisions

a. Analysis of balances

2020 2019
$’000 $’000
Current
Provision for estimated liability to Hareon? 11,638 7,926
Provision for annual leave 390 481
12,028 8,407
Non-current
Provision for long service leave 112 219
Other 69 -
181 219

Notes:

Pursuant to and in connection with the Aurora Share Subscription and Assignment Deed (“Aurora Subscription Deed”), dated 28 July 2015,
between Aurora Investment Management Pty Ltd (as the Trustee of Aurora Trust), the Aurora Trust, Hareon Solar Singapore Private Limited
(“Hareon”), Nereus Capital Investments (Singapore) Pte. Ltd (“NCI”) and Nereus Holdings Inc (“Nereus”), Aurora agreed to make a contingent
additional contribution (“Additional Contribution”) to NCI of up to five over seven (5/7) of Hareon’s Capital Contribution less any amounts funded
under the Guarantee as discussed in Note 19. This Additional Contribution can be drawn by NCI only to fund the exercise of the Put Option, which
is held by Hareon, when and if it is exercised. In the Shareholders’ Deed (“Shareholder’s Deed”), dated 28 July 2015, Hareon may put its Class H
Shares back to NCI at the “Put Option Price” any time within 60 days following the sixth anniversary of the commissioning of the first solar project
sponsored by NCI, which occurred in June 2016. Thus, the Option can be exercised beginning July 2022. The Put Option Price is equivalent to a
return of Hareon’s invested capital plus a specified return on their invested capital. The Class H shares have priority to other shareholders.

-

Management’s assessment of the Additional Contribution that may be required in the event that Hereon were to put its Class H Shares back to NCI
is estimated to be $11,638,000 (2019: $7,926,000). As at 30 June 2020, the Group increased its potential obligation by $3,712,000 (USD
2,452,000), net of repayments of $746,000 (USD500,000). Management have estimated the value of this Additional Contribution based on the
difference between the fair value of the solar plants operated by NCI and the redemption value of the Class H shares.

Movement of provision for estimated liability to Hareon for the year

2020 2019

$’000 $’000
Opening balance 7,926 -
Provisions for the year (See Note 3) 4,405 7,688
Repayments (746) -
Foreign currency movement 53 238
Ending balance 11,638 7,926
b. Accounting policies
(i) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (contractual, legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, considering the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flows.
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When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.

(ii) Provision for annual leave and long service leave

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of annual leave and long service leave in the
period the related service is rendered, when it is probable that settlement will be required and they are capable of
being measured reliably.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at their nominal values using the
remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. Liabilities recognised in respect of long-term employee
benefits are measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the Group in respect
of services provided by employees up to reporting date.

c. Key estimates, judgments, and assumptions
Provision for estimated liability to Hareon

Management determined the provision for estimated liability to Hareon based on a two-step process by calculating the
fair value of the Solar Projects and the Group’s potential cash liability obligation. Step one was to determine the fair
value of the Solar Projects by using the weighted probability of the valuation provided by an independent expert and
the indicative offer from a third party. Step two was to determine the value of the Group’s potential cash liability
obligation based on the ranges of settlement amounts reduced by the fair value of the Solar Projects determined in
step one.
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D. CAPITAL, FINANCING AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

This section provides information regarding the capital, financing and financial risk management of the Group during the
year, including further details on financial liabilities, share capital, reserves, dividends paid and proposed, financial risk
management and capital commitments, short-term operating lease commitments and contingencies.

14. Financial liabilities

a. Analysis of balances

2020 2019
$’000 $’000
Current
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
- Notes payable - Seizert? - 7,499
- Sublease liability? - 246
- 7,745
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
- Earn-out liability? - 9,224
- 16,969
Non-current
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
- Sublease liability? - 255
Financial liabilities at FVTPL:
- Earn out liability - Aether® 4,244 3,433
- Earn-out liability - Pennybacker? 4,737 -
- Deferred payment — former owners of EAM Global® 193 165
9,174 3,598
Embedded derivatives:
- CAMG put options® 269 -
9,443 3,853
Notes:

1

The notes payable — Seizert pertains to the notes issued by the Trust in November 2014 to the former owners of Seizert as part of the
consideration for the acquisition by Midco for the equity interest in Seizert. The Group made full payment to the holders of the notes payable in
the amount of $8,053,000 (USD5,434,000) including accrued interest on 13 December 2019.

The Group implemented AASB 16 from 1 July 2019 resulting in the derecognition of the sublease liability. Refer to Note 27 for the impact of
adoption of AASB 16.

The earn-out liability represents the amount owed by the Group to the former owners of Aether, for marketing and offering interests in the
Aether Real Assets V, L.P. (“ARA Fund V”). ARA Fund V was formally closed on 20 July 2019 and two-thirds of the earn-out liability was recognised
as a current liability as at 30 June 2019 and was paid on 15 October 2019. The remainder of the earn-out liability is due at the earlier of the final
close of ARA Fund VIl or three years after the close of ARA Fund VI and was classified as a non-current liability.

The earn-out liability represents the potential obligation to Pennybacker with a maximum additional consideration for $10,876,000
(USD7,500,000), which would be paid between the closing of the transaction and 31 December 2024 if certain revenue thresholds for
Pennybacker’s emerging growth and income platforms are met. At the date of acquisition, the Group recorded its share of the fair value of the
potential earn-out obligation in the amount of $4,552,000 (USD3,139,000). As at 30 June 2020, the fair value of the earn-our obligation was
$4,737,000. This increase in fair value was due to increase in cash flows.

The deferred payment pertains to the acquisition of the additional 375 preferred units in EAM Global from its former owners representing
additional 3.75% equity ownership in EAM Global. The deferred payment is equivalent to 2% and 1% of EAM’s gross revenues for the years ending
31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022, respectively.

By means of a Limited Liability Partnership Deed (“Deed”) (amended as of 12 August 2019) with CAMG, the Group has committed to make capital
contributions of up to GBP4,000,000 over three years, for interests in CAMG up to a maximum of 40% in total. In exchange for drawing the
remaining committed amount (each occurrence a “Subsequent Drawdown”), CAMG will issue and allot to the Group additional ordinary interests
with the quantity dependent on conditions at each Subsequent Drawdown.

The Deed creates a series of put options whereby CAMG has a right (but not obligation) to sell ordinary interests in CAMG to the Group at the
Subsequent Drawdown amounts within a period of three years. Thus, the Group has a liability in the form of the sold put options to CAMG.
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(i) Movement of financial liabilities at amortised cost

Imputed
Impact on and Foreign
Opening  application interest Reclassi- currency Closing
balance of AASB16 accrued Repayments fications Adjustment movement balance
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
2020
Current 7,745 (246) 244 (8,053) - - 310 -
Non-current 255 (255) - - - - - -
8,000 (501) 244 (8,053) - - 310 -
2019
Current 13,139 - 693 (18,618) 12,670 43 (182) 7,745
Non-current 12,260 - - - (12,670) - 665 255
25,399 - 693 (18,618) - 43 483 8,000
(ii) Movement of financial liabilities at FVTPL
Foreign
Opening currency Closing
balance Additions Revaluation Repayments movement balance
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
2020
Current 9,224 - 251 (9,920) 445 -
Non-current 3,598 4,552 977 - 47 9,174
12,822 4,552 1,228 (9,920) 492 9,174
2019
Current - 8,901 311 - 12 9,224
Non-current 169 3,313 103 - 13 3,598
169 12,214 414 - 25 12,822
(iii) Movement of embedded derivatives
Foreign
Opening currency Closing
balance Additions Revaluation movement balance
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
2020
Non-current - - 282 (13) 269
b. Accounting policies

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

(i) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

These financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and subsequently measured at

amortised cost.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating

interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash

payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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(i) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

The Group designates its financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

- the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed, and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and the standard permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

(iii)  Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled, or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the statement of profit or loss under net gains/(losses) on financial liabilities.

c. Key estimates, judgements, and assumptions

(i) Valuation of financial liabilities at fair value

The Group exercises significant judgement in areas that are highly subjective (refer to Note 18f). The valuation of
liabilities and the assessment of carrying values require that a detailed assessment be undertaken which reflects

assumptions on markets, manager performance and expected growth to project future cash outflows that are
discounted at a rate that imputes relative risk and cost of capital considerations.
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15.  Share capital

a. Analysis of balances
2020 2019
$’000 $’000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares 178,424 166,279
Movements in ordinary shares on issue
2020 2019

No. of shares $’000 No. of shares $’000
Opening balance 47,642,367 166,279 47,642,367 166,279

Shares issued:

- 9 December 2019, net of share issue costs and
income tax 2,066,116 12,145 - -

Closing balance 49,708,483 178,424 47,642,367 166,279

On 9 December 2019, the Company completed a fully underwritten institutional placement of 2,066,116 new fully paid
ordinary shares at an issue price of $6.05 per share totalling to $12,500,000 before issue costs. The new shares rank
equally with existing shares. The proceeds of the placement were used to settle deferred consideration from existing
investments and replenish the Company’s operating capital.

Fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry the right to dividends.
b. Accounting policies

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

c. Capital management

The Company’s capital management policies focus on ordinary share capital. When managing capital, the Board’s
objective is to ensure the entity continues as a going concern as well as to maintain optimal returns to shareholders
and benefits to other stakeholders.

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Company paid dividends of $12,117,000 (2019: $15,246,000). The Board
anticipates that the medium payout ratio is 50% to 80% of the underlying net profit after tax of the Group. The Board
continues to monitor the appropriate dividend payout ratio over the medium term.

The Board is constantly reviewing the capital structure to take advantage of favourable cost of capital or high returns
on assets. As the market is constantly changing, the Board may change the amount of dividends to be paid to
shareholders or conduct share buybacks.
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16. Reserves

)¢

a. Analysis of balances
2020 2019
$’000 $’000
Investment revaluation reserve 63,605 36,316
Foreign currency translation reserve 56,278 47,844
Equity-settled employee benefits reserve 6,737 6,774
126,620 90,934
(i) Investment revaluation reserve
This reserve records the Group’s gain on its financial assets at FVTOCI.
Movements in reserve:
Opening balance 36,616 27,320
Net fair value gain on financial assets at FVTOCI, net of income tax 28,091 6,627
Reversal of the net fair value gain, net of income tax, on financial assets at FVTOCI
derecognised during the period (refer to Note 22a(iii)) (817) -
Foreign currency movement 15 2,369
Closing balance 63,605 36,316
(ii) Foreign currency translation reserve
The reserve records the Group’s foreign currency translation reserve on foreign operations.
Movements in reserve:
Opening balance 47,844 33,035
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations of the Group 8,482 14,758
Share of non-controlling interests (48) 51
Closing balance 56,278 47,844

(iii)  Equity-settled employee benefits reserve

This reserve is used to record the value of equity benefits provided to employees and Directors as part of their

remuneration. Refer to Note 25 for further details of these plans.

Movements in reserve:

Opening balance 6,774 5,758
Share-based payments 961 1,016
Value of shares bought on market to settle share-based payments (refer to Note 25) (998) -
Closing balance 6,737 6,774
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17. Dividends paid and proposed

a. Analysis of balances
2020 2019
$’000 $’000
Previous year final:
Fully franked dividend (15 cents per share) (2019: 22 cents per share) 7,146 10,482
Current year interim:
Fully franked dividend (10 cents per share) (2019: 10 cents per share) 4,971 4,764

12,117 15,246

Declared after the reporting period and not recognised*:

Fully franked dividend (25 cents per share) (2019: 15 cents per share) 12,427 7,146
b. Franking credit balance
The balance at the end of the financial year at 30% (2019: 30%)? 28,988 31,587
Franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends/distributions recognised as

receivables by the parent entity at the reporting date 228 144

The impact on the franking account of dividends proposed or declared before the
financial report was authorised for issue but not recognised as a distribution to the
members of the Company (5,326) (3,063)

23,890 28,668

Franking credits that will arise on payment of current tax liability - 2,372

The amounts of franking credits available for future reporting periods 23,890 31,040

The tax rate at which paid dividends have been franked and dividends proposed will be franked is 30% (2019: 30%).

Notes:
! Calculation was based on the ordinary shares on issue as at 31 July 2020 (2019: 31 July 2019).
2 The decrease in franking credits arose from the payment of dividends to the members of the Company.
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18.  Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks comprising interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign
currency risk and price risk.

The Board have overall responsibility for identifying and managing operational and financial risks.

Details of significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset,
financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in the relevant notes.

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

At amortised
cost At FVTPL At FVTOCI Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 20,154 80,232 - - - - 20,154 80,232
Trade and other receivables
—current 14,837 12,809 - - - - 14,837 12,809
—non-current 283 283 -
Other financial assets
—current 1,021 6,180 1,227 1,338 - - 2,248 7,518
—non-current 2,187 2,183 93,038 51,283 102,761 66,600 197,986 120,066
Other assets
— current?! - 139 - - - - - 139
—non-current 303 254 - - - - 303 254

38,785 101,797 94,265 52,621 102,761 66,600 235,811 221,018

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 5,785 7,506 - - - - 5,785 7,506
Other financial liabilities
—current - 7,745 - 9,224 - - - 16,969
—non-current - 255 9,174 3,598 - — 9,174 3,853
Lease liabilities
—current 888 - - - - - 888 -
— non-current 1,657 - - - - - 1,657 -

8,330 15,506 9,174 12,822 - 17,504 28,328

Notes:
! The amount excludes prepayments.

a. Interest rate risk

At the reporting date, the Group had the following direct exposure to global variable interest rate risk:

2020 2019
$’000 $’000
Interest bearing financial assets:
- Cash and cash equivalents 20,154 80,232
- Receivable from other party - 5,108

20,154 85,340

Interest bearing financial liabilities:
- Notes payable — Seizert - 7,499

- 7,499
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Sensitivity analysis
The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rate risk exposures in existence at the reporting date.

If interest rates had moved during the year as illustrated in the table below (using an average balance), with all other
variables held constant, post tax profit/(loss) would have been affected as follows:

2020 2019
Net impact on profit after tax $’000 $’000
+0.75% [2019: 0.75%]/ 75 basis points, [2019: 75 basis points] 127 399
-0.75% [2019: 0.75%)/ (75 basis points), [2019: 75 basis points] (85) (399)

b. Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the financial assets of the Group, which comprise, trade and other receivables, and other debt
instruments. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from potential default of the counterparty, with the maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. Exposure at reporting date is addressed in each
applicable note. The Group does not hold any credit derivatives to offset its credit exposure.

The Group transacts only with related parties and recognised creditworthy third parties. As such collateral is not
requested nor is it the Group’s policy to securitise its trade and other receivables and other debt instruments.

Receivable balances and loans made to related entities are monitored on an ongoing basis and remain within approved
levels, with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. Refer to Note 9a(i) and Note 10a(i).

The Company provides financing to the members of the Group in certain circumstances where these entities are
deemed credit worthy. The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying value of the loans.

Impact of COVID-19

As a response to COVID-19, the Group undertook a review of its trade, dividends and other receivables and the
expected credit losses for each. The expected loss rates are then based on the payment profiles over a period of 36
months before 30 June 2020 and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are then adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on various factors affecting
the ability of the counterparties to settle the receivables including the review of their financial statements.
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c. Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and cash in bank balance by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following table details the Group's expected maturity for its financial assets. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will be earned on those
assets. The inclusion of information on financial assets is necessary to understand the Group's liquidity risk
management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.

Weighted
average 3 months
effective 1to3 to 1to2 2to5
interest months 1year years years Total
rate $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2020
Trade receivables and contract assets 0% 3,643 1,174 189 142 5,148
Dividend receivable 0% 9,942 - - - 9,942
Sundry receivables 0% 59 14 - - 73
Receivable from EAM Investors 10.00% 187 541 674 1,048 2,450
Loans receivable from IFP 13.00% - 64 86 743 893
Sublease receivable 6.40% 101 207 156 - 464
Investment in IFP at FVTPL 10.00% - 40 630 319 989
Receivable from Raven 6.68% 294 882 1,176 857 3,209
Security deposits 1.15% 4 43 233 24 304

14,230 2,965 3,144 3,133 23,472
2019
Trade receivables and contract assets 0% 5,985 656 - - 6,641
Dividend receivable 0% 6,165 - - - 6,165
Sundry receivables 0% 3 - - - 3
Receivable from other party 0.88% - 5,118 - - 5,118
Receivable from EAM Investors 10.00% 197 571 714 1,689 3,171
Sublease receivable 7.25% 61 186 361 - 608
Loans receivable from third parties 7.00% 3 9 11 35 58
Receivable from Raven 7.78% 354 1,048 1,398 1,565 4,365
Security deposits 2.32% 112 - - 258 370

12,880 7,588 2,484 3,547 26,499
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The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities with agreed
repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both principal and interest cash
flows. To the extent that interest rates are floating, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at
the end of the reporting period.

Weighted 3 months
average 1to3 to 1to2 2to5
effective months 1year years years Total
interest rate $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
2020
Trade and other payables 0% 5,785 - - - 5,785
Earn-out liability (Aether) 7.00% - - - 5,026 5,026
Earn-out liability (Pennybacker) 14.00% - - - 7,968 7,968
Deferred payment (EAM Global) 19.00% - - 180 99 279
Lease liabilities 5.98% 244 749 629 1,233 2,855
6,029 749 809 14,326 21,913
2019
Trade and other payables 0% 7,506 - - - 7,506
Notes payable - Seizert 7.37% - 7,722 - - 7,722
Earn-out liability (Aether) 8.00% - 9,464 - 4,731 14,195
Deferred payment (EAM Global) 18.32% - - - 281 281
Sublease liability 7.25% 60 186 342 - 588
7,566 17,372 342 5,012 30,292
d. Foreign currency risk

The Group adopted an accounting treatment to hedge its dollar net assets for its Investment in Northern Lights Midco,
LLC (“Midco”) for foreign exchange exposure arising between the Australian dollar and US dollar. At 30 June 2020, the
Group had no hedge exposure since it fully paid its external borrowings denominated in USD.

(i) Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Profits and losses are translated at an average exchange rate. A falling Australian dollar relative to the USA dollar, UK
pound (“GBP”) and Euro (“EUR”) results in a higher net profit in the Group. The day to day expenses of the operations
in Australia, the USA and the UK are predominately funded with cash flows from those local operations.

(i) Consolidated statement of financial position

The Group is an international multi boutique business with operations primarily within Australia, the USA and the UK.
In addition, the Group has an investment in Luxembourg where the transactions are denominated in Euro. The impact
of foreign currency translation of the foreign operations is taken up in the equity reserves of the Group. The impact of
the Euro denominated transactions being the distributions and the related receivables from Carlisle is taken up
through profit or loss.

62



PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

At year end, the carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that are different from the functional
currency of the Company and transactions that are denominated in foreign currency are as follows:

2020 2019
usD GBP EUR usD GBP EUR
$’000 $’000 $7000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 14,528 4,254 - 65,641 3,644 -
Trade and other receivables 11,817 249 2,397 8,778 281 2,780
Other financial assets 200,517 - - 122,476 - -
Other assets 103 24 1,494 42 -
226,965 4,527 2,397 198,389 3,967 2,780
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 2,757 1,937 - 4,247 1,253 -
Other financial liabilities 9,174 - - 13,324 - -
Lease liabilities 2,286 - - - - -
14,217 1,937 - 17,571 1,253 -

(iii)  Sensitivity analysis

As at year end, the Group has no material exposure in USD, GBP, and EUR foreign currencies.

(iv)  Accounting policies

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation that qualify for hedge accounting

The effective portion of the changes in the foreign currency risk component that is designated and qualifies as a hedge
of a net investment in a foreign operation is recognised as part of foreign currency translation reserve within equity.
The gain or loss relating to any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss, within other expenses.
The accumulated gains and losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the foreign currency

risk component is reclassified from foreign currency translation reserve to profit or loss on the disposal or partial
disposal of the foreign operation.
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e. Price risk

The Group is exposed to securities price risk. This arises from the Group’s investments in financial instruments held at
fair value.

Sensitivity analysis

As at year end, if the key inputs discussed in Note 18f(i) have moved, post tax profit and reserves would have been
affected as follows:

2020 2019
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Financial assets at FVTPL
- 1% variable inputs - impact on profit after tax 1,660 (1,534) 4,182 (3,645)
Financial assets at FVTOCI
- 1% variable inputs - impact on equity 2,878 (2,305) 2,755 (2,301)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
- 1% variable inputs - impact on profit after tax 196 (204) (134) 129
Embedded derivatives
- 1% variable inputs - impact on profit after tax (29) 29 - -
f. Fair value estimation
(i) Fair value hierarchy

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured on a recurring basis at fair value at the end
of each reporting period.

The Group classifies fair value measurements using the fair value hierarchy categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the
fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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The following table gives information about how the fair values of those financial assets / liabilities categorised as
Level 3 items are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used):

Relationship of

Raven

- Projected revenue from the
new FUM of the business

- Discount rate

33.33%
(2019: 33.33%)

6.84%
(2019: 7.78%)

Financial 2020 2019 Valuation techniques unobservable
instruments $’000 $’000 and unobservable inputs Range of inputs input to fair value
Financial assets at FVTPL
Investment in 60,670 48,766 | Discounted Cash Flow 1% (2019: 1%) lower or
Carlisle higher terminal growth rate
- Revenue growth derived 6.4% to 27.9% (2019: discount rate) while
from FUM growth (2019: nil) all the other variables were
held constant, the fair
- Discount rate 20% (2019: 14.08%) |value would decrease by
$1,742,000 and increase by
- Terminal growth rate 3% (2019: 3%) $1,887,000 (2019: decrease
by $4,556,000 and increase
by $5,235,000).
Investment in 29,464 —|Discounted Cash Flow 1% (2019: nil) lower or
Proterra higher terminal growth rate
(acquired on 21 - Revenue growth derived 3% to 37% (2019:  |while all the other variables
September 2019) from FUM growth nil) were held constant, the fair
value would decrease by
- Discount rate 8.5% - 14.5% (2019: |$236,000 and increase by
nil) $249,000 (2019: nil).
- Terminal growth rate 2.5% (2019: nil)
Investment in IFP 1,214 —|Discounted Cash Flow 1% (2019: nil) lower or
- preferential higher discount rate while
distribution - Discount rate 10% (2019: nil) all the other variables were
(acquired on 13 held constant, the fair
March 2020) value would decrease by
$5,000 and increase by
$5,000 (2019: nil).
Receivable from 2,917 3,855 | Discounted Cash Flow 1% (2019: 1%) lower or

higher discount rate while
all the other variables were
held constant, the fair
value would increase by
$40,000 and decrease by
$39,000 (2019: increase by
$59,000 and decrease by
$57,000).

Notes:

! The investment in Nereus was classified as held-for sale. The cost to sell and the difference between the assessed value of the underlying assets
and the value of Class H shares were recognised as a provision (refer to Note 13 for details).
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Relationship of

Financial 2020 2019 Valuation techniques unobservable
instruments $’000 $’000 and unobservable inputs Range of inputs input to fair value
Financial assets at FVTOCI
Investment in 95,214 56,526 | Discounted Cash Flow 1% (2019: 1%) lower or higher
GQG terminal growth rate while all
- Revenue growth derived | 7.6% to 45% (2019: |the other variables were held
from FUM growth 10% to 22.3%) constant, the fair value would
decrease by $2,772,000 and
- Compression fee 0% (2019: 5%) increase by $3,353,000 (2019:
decrease by $2,563,000 and
- Discount rate 15% (2019: 15%)  |increase by $3,132,000).
- Terminal growth rate 3% (2019: 3%)
- Probability factor on:
- discounted cash 65% (2019: nil)
flow
- control transaction |10% (2019: nil)
value
- call option value 25% (2019: nil)
Investment in 7,547 8,543 | Discounted Cash Flow 1% (2019: 1%) lower or higher
EAM Global terminal growth rate while all
- Revenue growth derived |(2%) to 10.1% the other variables were held
from FUM growth (2019: 5% to 10.5%) | constant, the fair value would
decrease by $145,000 and
- Discount rate 19% (2019: 18.5%) |increase by $290,000 (2019:
decrease by $285,000 and
- Terminal growth rate 3% (2019: 3%) increase by $285,000).
Investment in IFP - 1,531 | Discounted Cash Flow 2019: 1% lower or higher
(classified as an discount rate, while all the
associate at 31 - Discount rate 2019: 7.7% other variables were held
December 2019) constant, the fair value would
increase by $70,000 and
decrease by $65,000.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Earn out liability - 4,244 12,657 | Discounted Cash Flow 1% (2019: 1%) lower or higher

Aether

Discount rate

7.% (2019: 8%)

discount rate while all the
other variables were held
constant, the fair value would
increase by $101,000 and
decrease by $98,000 (2019:
increase by $164,000 and
decrease by $158,000).
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P¢

Relationship of

- Probability factor that
the put option will be
exercised

$4,520,000)

7.5% (2019: 0%)

Financial 2020 2019 Valuation techniques unobservable
instruments $’000 $’000 and unobservable inputs Range of inputs input to fair value
Earn out liability — 4,737 —|Discounted Cash Flow 1% (2019: nil) lower or higher
Pennybacker discount rate while all the
(acquired on 14 - Revenue growth derived|$7,703,000 (2019: |other variables were held
December 2019) from FUM growth nil) constant, the fair value would
increase by $154,000 and
- Earn-out factor to earn- |60% (2019: nil) decrease by $147,000 (2019:
out multiplier nil).
- Discount rate 15% (2019: nil)
Deferred 193 165 | Discounted Cash Flow 1% (2019: 1%) lower or higher
payment — former discount rate while all the
owners of EAM - Projected gross 2% and 1% (2019: |other variables were held
Global revenues for the years |2% and 1%) constant, the fair value would
ending 31 March 2022 increase by $4,000 and
and 2023 decrease by $4,000 (2019:
increase by $5,000 and
- Discount rate 19% (2019: 18.5%) |decrease by $5,000)
Embedded derivatives
CAMG put option 269 —|- Commitment amount $3,590,000 (2019: |1% (2019: nil) lower or higher

probability factor while all the
other variables were held
constant, the fair value would
decrease by $36,000 and
increase by $36,000 (2019: nil)

(ii)

Transfers between levels and changes in valuation techniques

There were no transfers between the levels of fair value hierarchy during the financial year. There were also no changes
made to any of the valuation techniques applied as at 30 June 2020.

(iif)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value
disclosures are required)

Except as detailed in the table below, the carrying amounts of financial assets (cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, receivable from other party, loans from third party and security deposits) and financial liabilities
(trade and other payables) recognised in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

Financial assets at amortised cost
- Receivable from EAM Investors

- Loans receivable from IFP

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

- Notes payable — Seizert

2020
Carrying Fair
amount value
$7000 $’000
2,092 2,206
679 691

2019
Carrying Fair
amount value
$’000 $’000
2,600 2,587
7,499 7,396
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19. Capital commitments, operating lease commitments and contingencies

2020 2019
$’000 $’000
(a) Capital commitments
The Group has outstanding capital commitments as follows:
- IFP subsequent capital calls (USDnil) (2019: USD1,500,000) - 2,136
- CAMG further drawdowns until April 2021 (GBP1,500,000) (2019: GBP2,500,000) 2,693 4,520
- Additional Contribution to NCI (USD12,095,000) (2019:USD12,595,000)! 17,555 17,933
Total capital commitments 20,248 24,589

Notes:

! Under the Aurora Subscription Deed and Shareholder’s Deed referred in Note 13, Aurora agreed to make an Additional Contribution to NCI in the
amount of USD13,500,000; reduced by the amount of Guarantee paid of USD1,405,000 (2019:USD905,000). The presentation of this disclosure
was repositioned and the comparative was included to be consistent with the current year disclosure.

Earn-out payments for the future funds of Aether

This represents the potential commitment by the Group to the two founders of Aether, for marketing and offering
interests for the set-up and successful launching of future Aether funds (ARA Fund VI and interim funds related to ARA
Fund V and ARA Fund VI). Refer to Note 14 footnote 3 for details.

(b) Contingent liabilities

The Group has outstanding contingent liabilities as follows:

- Guarantee to NCI (USD5,000,000)* 7,257 7,119
Total contingent liabilities 7,257 7,119
Notes:

! The Group agreed to provide a guarantee (“Guarantee”) to NCI of up to US5,000,000 a year for each of the six years following the date of
commission of the first solar project sponsored by NCI. This Guarantee is to cover any shortfall payments, which are basically the amounts that
are drawn upon by NCI if and when certain prescribed thresholds in respect to annual revenues of NCI are not met.

The Shareholder’s Deed requires that an escrow account (“Escrow Account”) be funded to be used to satisfy the Guarantee. These shortfall
payments are drawn from the Escrow Account. The Group shall contribute additional amounts to the Escrow Account equal to any amounts drawn
down by Nereus so that the balance of the of the Escrow Account will be kept at USD5,000,000. To date, the Group does not maintain the Escrow
Account. Nevertheless, the Group had been honouring any shortfall payments by funding USD1,405,000 (2019: USD905,000).
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(c) Operating lease commitments

Commitments for short-term minimum lease payments (2019: minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable
operating leases):

- not later than one year - 779
- later than one year and not later than five years - 2,092
- later than five years - 336
Total lease commitments - 3,207

From 1 July 2019, the Group adopted AASB 16 and recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases which had previously
been classified as operating leases under the principles of AASB117 ‘Leases’. Refer to Note 27 for the impact of the
adoption of AASB 16.

The prior year operating lease commitments predominantly represents the commercial property leases of the Group
to meet its office accommodation requirements. All leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental
charge on an annual basis according to prevailing market conditions.

(d) Contingent assets

On 17 September 2019, the Company received an originating application in the Federal Court of Australia in
Melbourne by certain shareholders seeking leave of the court to commence a derivative action on behalf of the
Company against several of its current and former Directors for damages arising out of the 2014 merger between the
Company and the Northern Lights Capital Group, LLC. On 23 September 2019, the Company received a draft statement
claim in relation to the derivative action.

On 20 February 2020, the certain shareholders received leave of the Federal Court of Australia under section 237 of
the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company, against individuals who, in 2014, were
Directors of the Company (previously known as Treasury Group Limited) prior to its business combination with
Northern Lights Capital Partners, LLC (“Defendants”). The effect is that the Company is the named plaintiff in
proceedings brought in the Federal Court of Australia against the Defendants. IMF Bentham (Fund 5) (“Litigation
Funder”) has given an undertaking to cover the Company’s costs and any liabilities or adverse cost orders made against
the Company in favour of the Defendants. As a result, the claims are not expected to have a material adverse effect on
the Company. If the proceedings are successful or are settled on terms that the Defendants pay an agreed amount, the
Company will be entitled to the net proceeds after deducting specified legal costs and the Litigation Funder’s share.
The Company has made claims against its relevant insurance policies in relation to these matters on behalf of its
current directors.

69



PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

E. GROUP STRUCTURE

This section provides information regarding the group structure of the Group, including further details on interests in
subsidiaries, intangible assets, investment in associates and joint venture, parent entity disclosure and related party
transactions.

20. Interests in subsidiaries

The following are the Company's subsidiaries:

Country of Ownership interest
Name of subsidiaries incorporation held by the Company

2020 2019

% %

Aurora Investment Management Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
The Aurora Trust Australia 100 100
Treasury Evergreen Pty Ltd"? Australia - 100
Treasury Group Investment Services Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Treasury ROC Pty Ltd?! Australia 100 100
Northern Lights MidCo, LLC (“Midco”) USA 100 100
Carlisle Acquisition Vehicle, LLC (“CAV”)3 USA 100 100

Northern Lights Capital Group, LLC USA 100 100

NLCG Distributors, LLC USA 100 100

Northern Lights Capital Partners (UK) Ltd (“NLCPUK") UK 100 100

Strategic Capital Investments, LLP UK 60 60

Northern Lights MidCo Il, LLC USA 100 100

Aether Investment Partners, LLC USA 100 100

Seizert Capital Partners, LLC? USA 25 50

Notes:

These subsidiaries are holding companies and non-operating.

2 At 30 June 2020, this subsidiary was deregistered.

CAV is a limited liability company established on 12 January 2019 to hold the Group’s investment in Carlisle. Midco owns 1% and NLCPUK owns 99%
of CAV (30 June 2019: Midco owned 95% and NLCPUK owned 5%).

On 2 January 2020, Seizert redeemed its 500 Class A Common Units held by the Group for USD1 per unit as the first part of its equity restructuring.
This restructuring was designed so that the Group only owns the preferred units. The restructure resulted in the Group equity ownership to
change from 54.55% to 25% on a fully diluted basis. However, the Group still retained its 54.55% voting rights, majority Board representation and
distribution waterfall (i.e. 100% income of Seizert to the Group up to USD10,000,000 revenue). The existing accounting treatment of the
investment as a subsidiary did not change since the Group still effectively controls Seizert.

-

Accounting policies

(i) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company has power
over the investee, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and has the
ability to use its power to affect its returns.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company's voting rights in
an investee are sufficient to give it power, including the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders, potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote
holders or other parties, rights arising from other contractual arrangements, and any additional facts and
circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities
at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders' meetings.
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Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income/(loss) are attributed to the members of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
members of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies. The financial statements of the Australian and US subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company (30 June).

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full upon consolidation.

(ii) Foreign currency translations and balances

Functional and presentation currency

The individual financial statements of each Group entity are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of the Group are expressed in Australian dollars, which is the functional
currency of the Company and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the Group’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

- exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

- exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation),
which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
repayment of the monetary items.

For the purpose of presenting these consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into Australian dollar using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuated
significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (and attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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21. Intangible assets

a. Analysis of balances

Goodwill, net of impairment

Other identifiable intangible assets, at carrying amount

- Brand and trademark
- Management rights

Total intangible assets

Movement of intangible assets
2020

Opening balance

Impairment

Amortisation

Effect of foreign currency differences

Closing balance

2019

Opening balance

Additions?

Impairment

Amortisation

Other movement

Effect of foreign currency differences

Closing balance

Cash generating units

Goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets:

2020
- Aether
- Seizert

Closing balance

2019
- Aether
- Seizert

Closing balance

Notes:

)¢

2020 2019

$’000 $’000
37,295 58,133
10,373 18,055
15,064 17,906
25,437 35,961
62,732 94,094

Brand and Management

Goodwill trademark rights Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
58,133 18,055 17,906 94,094
(22,585) (8,259) - (30,844)
- - (3,279) (3,279)
1,747 577 437 2,761
37,295 10,373 15,064 62,732
79,977 17,126 7,723 104,826
- - 12,213 12,213
(25,943) - - (25,943)
- - (2,624) (2,624)
- - 189 189
4,099 929 405 5,433
58,133 18,055 17,906 94,094
37,295 7,838 15,064 60,197
- 2,535 - 2,535
37,295 10,373 15,064 62,732
44,414 7,689 17,906 70,009
13,719 10,366 - 24,085
58,133 18,055 17,906 94,094

! The additions to the management rights refer to the Group’s entitlement to receive the management fees to be generated from managing ARA
Fund V. The cost to acquire this right was determined based on the 50% of the total revenues to be generated by ARA Fund V. Refer to Note 14

footnote 3 for details.
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b. Accounting policies
(i) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of the acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

(ii) Brand and trademark and management rights

Brand and trademark and management rights acquired as part of a business combination are recognised separately
from goodwill. These are initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

- Brand and trademark — Subsequent to initial recognition, brand and trademark which have indefinite lives are
reported at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

- Management rights — Subsequent to initial recognition, management rights are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Management rights are amortised as follows:

- Acquired in 2014 — based on a straight-line basis over their estimated remaining useful life of 6.33 years; and
- Acquired in 2019 — based on 50% of the annual revenue to be earned from ARA Fund V over 12 years.

(iii)  Impairment of goodwill, brand and trademark and management rights

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill, brand and trademark and management rights are allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill, brand and trademark and management rights have been specifically
identified to the cash-generating unit is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill to the unit, then to brand and
trademark and management rights and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. A further impairment test is performed to the brand and trademark and management rights to
determine individually there is an indication that these other identifiable intangible assets may be impaired. Any
impairment loss for goodwill, brand and trademark and management rights are recognised directly in profit or loss.
Any impairment loss recognised for goodwill are not reversed in subsequent periods. For brand and trademark and
management rights, any impairment loss recognised are reversed in subsequent periods if a business recovers or
exceeds previous levels of financial performance

c. Key estimates, judgments, and assumptions
Impairment of goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, management assesses the level of goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets
of each of the underlying assets of the Group. Should assets underperform or not meet expected growth targets from
prior expectations, a resulting impairment of the goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets is recognised if that
deterioration in performance is deemed not to be derived from short term factors such as market volatility. Factors
that are considered in assessing possible impairment in addition to financial performance include changes to key
investment staff, significant investment underperformance and litigation. Impairments of goodwill in relation to
subsidiaries cannot be reversed if a business recovers or exceeds previous levels of financial performance.
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Aether

The recoverable amount of Aether, a cash-generating unit, is determined based on a value in use calculation which
uses cash flow projections. These cash flow projections include expected revenues from existing funds, which are
largely certain, as well as anticipated new fund raising every two years. A five-year discrete period was applied as it is
believed that it is sufficient time for the business to be in a steady state in terms of launching new funds based on the
existing plan for the business. During the year, the goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets were assessed and
tested for impairment. At 30 June 2020, impairment of the goodwill of $8,206,000 (2019: $1,590,000 impairment of
goodwill) was recognised.

A weighted average discount rate of 11.4% (2019: 15.5%) were applied in the cash flow projections during the discrete
period, tax rate of 21% (2019: 21%) and the terminal growth rate of 3% (2019: 3%) were applied.

Seizert

The recoverable amount of Seizert, a cash-generating unit, is determined based on a value in use calculation which
uses cash flow projections. These cash flow projections include expected revenues from existing funds, which are
largely certain, as well as anticipated new fund raising every two years. A five-year discrete period was applied as it is
believed that it is sufficient time for the business to be in a steady state in terms of launching new funds based on the
existing plan for the business. During the year, the goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets were assessed and
tested for impairment. At 30 June 2020, full impairment of the goodwill of $14,379,000 and impairment of other
identifiable intangibles of $8,259,000 (2019: $24,353,000 impairment of goodwill) were recognised.

A weighted average discount rate of 18% (2019: 13.5%) were applied in the cash flow projections during the discrete
period, tax rate of 21% (2019: 21%) and the terminal growth rate of 3% (2019: 3%) were applied.

Impact of COVID-19

While the specific areas of judgement noted above did not change, the Group applied further judgement to consider the
impact of COVID-19 within those identified areas. Refer to Section A(f) for details.

Sensitivity analysis

An analysis was conducted to determine the sensitivity of the impairment test to reasonable changes in the key
assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount of the CGU. The sensitivities tested include a 5% reduction in
the annual cash flow of the CGU, a 1% decrease in the terminal growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond

financial year 2021 and a 1% increase in the discount rate applied to cash flow projections.

The impact on the impairment as result of these sensitivities is shown below:

Sensitivity Impact on impairment assessment Impairment

$’000

A 5% decrease in cash flows Further impairment of Aether and Seizert 2,847

A 1% decrease in terminal growth rate Further impairment of Aether and Seizert 3,808
A 1% increase in discount rate Further impairment of impairment of Aether

and Seizert 5,718

AASB 136 ‘Impairment of Assets’ requires that where a reasonably possible change in a key assumption would cause
the carrying amount of the CGU to exceed its recoverable amount, the value at which an impairment first arises shall
be disclosed.
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22. Investment in associates and joint venture

a. Analysis of balances

)¢

2020 2019

$’000 $’000
Investment in associates
Opening balance 110,143 46,023
Additional contribution to associates 8,867 127
Acquisition of associates - 94,825
Subsequent reclassification from investment at FVTOCI 3,786 -
Conversion of loans receivable to associate 480 -
Share of net profits of associates 1,663 1,118
Dividends and distributions received/receivable (4,929) (5,716)
Sale of investment in associates (459) (30,185)
Impairment (Note 3) (21,794) (2,914)
Transferred to profit or loss 180 178
Foreign currency movement 2,510 6,687
Closing balance 100,447 110,143
Investment in joint venture
Opening balance - -
Acquisition of a joint venture 29,017 -
Deferred consideration of an associate of the joint venture (refer to Note 14 footnote 4) 4,552 -
Share of net profits of a joint venture 88 -
Dividends and distributions received/receivable (542) -
Foreign currency movement 44 -
Closing balance 33,159 -
Total 133,606 110,143
(i) Details of associates and joint venture

Principal activity = Ownership interest Place of
2020 2019 incorporation

Associates % % and operation
Aether General Partners? Funds Management 25.00 25.00 USA
AlphaShares, LLC? Funds Management - 36.53 USA
Blackcrane Capital, LLC3 Funds Management 25.00 25.00 USA
Capital & Asset Management Group, LLP* Funds Management 32.50 20.00 USA/UK
Freehold Investment Management Limited® Funds Management - 30.89 Australia
IFP Group, LLC® Investment Adviser 24.90 - USA
Northern Lights Alternative Advisors LLP? Placement Agent 23.00 23.00 UK
Roc Group® Funds Management 30.00 17.59 Australia
Victory Park Capital Advisors, LLC® Funds Management 24.90 24.90 USA
Victory Park Capital GP Holdco, L.P.1° Funds Management  24.90 24.90 USA
Joint venture
Copper Funding, LLC! Investment Entity 50.00 - USA
Associate of the joint venture
Pennybacker Capital Management, LLC*? Funds Management 16.50 - USA
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Notes:

Aether Real Assets GP |, LLC, Aether Real Assets GP Il, LLC, Aether Real Assets GP Ill, LLC and Aether Real Assets Ill Surplus GP, LLC (collectively the

“Aether General Partners”) are the General Partners of Aether Real Assets |, L.P., Aether Real Assets Il, L.P., Aether Real Assets Ill, L.P. and Aether

Real Assets Ill Surplus, L.P. (collectively the “Funds”). The General Partners are responsible for the operation of the Funds and the conduct and

management of its business.

AlphaShares, LLC provided investors with direct exposure to Chinese markets primarily through a series of China related equity indexes. During the

financial year, AlphaShares, LLC was wound-up during the financial year.

Blackcrane is a boutique asset management firm focusing on global and international equities.

CAMG is a private infrastructure investment firm based in London and Washington DC.

FIM is a specialist investment manager focusing on Australian and global real estate and infrastructure sectors. The investment was sold on 14

October 2019.

IFP, founded in 2000, is a privately held, family-owned firm. IFP is a multi-custodial registered investment adviser focused on delivering

personalised, concierge-level service to over 500 advisors in the US specialising in wealth management and retirement plan consulting

NLAA is a strategic partner and placement agent focused on private equity and hedge funds based in London UK.

Roc Partners is specialised investment firm offering both pooled and customised Asia Pacific private equity solutions. Roc Group includes Roc

Partners Pty Ltd, Roc Management Services Trust and Roc Partners (Cayman) Limited. The Group holds stapled securities in Roc Group.

VPCis a focused on private debt strategies- direct lending to financial service companies (Specialty Finance) with some investments in private equity.

The investment was acquired on 3 July 2018.

10 yPC-Holdco holds direct and indirect interest in VPC funds and their general partner entities. The investment was acquired on 3 July 2018.

1 CFL is a limited liability company established on 23 November 2019 as a 50:50 joint venture of the Group with Kudu Investments Management,
LLC (“Kudu”) to hold the investment in Pennybacker.

12 pennybacker is an alternative investment manager based in Austin, Texas, USA offering private equity investment strategies focused on both
commercial, retail, office, and industrial assets, as well as affordable multifamily residential real estate in certain markets in the USA.

-

(LN

o

® N

(i) Additional contributions and acquisitions of associates

On 2 July 2019, the Group acquired an additional 12.41% equity interest in Roc Group for $6,826,000 increasing the
Group’s equity interest to 30%. The acquisition for the increase in the equity intertest in Roc Group included other
identifiable intangible assets and goodwill of $6,742,000.

On 26 August 2019, 5 November 2019 and 23 January 2020 and 19 May 2020 drawdowns to CAMG for a total of
$1,881,000 (GBP1,000,000), respectively, were made. This resulted to the increase in the Group’s equity interest in
CAMG to 32.50%. The acquisition of CAMG included other identifiable intangible assets and goodwill of $4,654,000.

In the prior period, the Group acquired 24.9% equity interest in each of VPC and VPC-Holdco for $69,114,000
(USD51,020,000) and $25,711,000 (USD18,980,000), respectively. The acquisition of VPC included management rights
and goodwill of $72,483,000. The acquisition of VPC-Holdco included goodwill of $25,789,000.

(iii)  Acquisition of additional interest in IFP

On 24 January 2019, the Group acquired 10% interest in IFP for $1,531,000 (USD1,075,000) and was classified as a
financial asset at FVTOCI.

On 14 October 2019, the Group provided IFP a credit facility to IFP. The initial amount of the credit facility is
$2,200,000 (USD1,500,000) and the credit facility bears interest of 13% per annum and will have to be fully repaid no
later than 31 December 2022. On 14 October 2019, IFP drawn the amount of $1,327,000 (USD889,000) from the credit
facility provided by the Group. This was classified as financial asset at amortised cost.

On 31 December 2019, the Group made an additional contribution of $895,000 (USD600,000) to IFP increasing the
Group ownership to 16%. The accounting treatment of this investment in IFP was changed from financial asset at
FVTOCI to an associate following the increase in equity ownership from 10% to 16%. The fair value of the investment
that was transferred from financial asset at FVTOCI to investment in associate amounted to $3,786,000. As a result,
the net fair value gain on financial asset at FVTOCI recognised in other comprehensive income amounting to $817,000
was transferred directly to retained earnings.

On 11 March 2020, the $1,327,000 (USD889,000) loan under the credit facility plus interest of $16,000 (USD11,000)
was recharacterised into additional capital contributions resulting in a further increased equity from 16% at 31
December 2019 to 24.9%. The derecognition of the financial asset at amortised cost resulted in a loss of $863,000.
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The acquisition of 24.90% interest in IFP included other identifiable intangible assets and goodwill of $5,831,000.

On 11 March 2020, the Group provided $1,194,000 (USD800,000) as operating capital contribution. This contribution
did not give right to an increased equity ownership nor a return equivalent to the existing equity in IFP. The Group is

entitled to a 10% annualised return to be collected upon IFP making initial distribution. This was classified as financial
asset at FVTPL.

On 11 March 2020, IFP and the Group have amended the credit facility to provide an additional balance of $895,000
(USD600,000). All other terms of the credit facility remain unchanged. IFP made drawdowns of $322,000 (USD216,000)
and $376,000 (USD252,000) on 13 March 2020 and 10 June 2020, respectively. This was classified as financial asset at
amortised cost.

(iv)  Sale of investment in associates

On 14 October 2019, the Group sold its 30.89% equity interest in FIM for $459,000.

In the prior year, the Group sold its 23.38% equity interest in Aperio for $101,593,000 (USD71,906,000) and 27.48%
equity interest in Celeste for $1,595,000.

The above sale transactions resulted in the recognition of a gain in profit or loss, calculated as follows:

2020 2019

$’000 $7000
Considerations received 459 103,188
Less: Carrying amount of investments on the date of sale (459) (30,185)
Gains recognised on the sale - 73,003

(v) Contributions to a joint venture

On 14 December 2019, the Group contributed $29,017,000 (USD20,010,000) for a 50% equity interest in CFL, alongside
an equal co-investor Kudu.

The Group and Kudu made combined contributions of $58,057,000 (USD40,000,000) to acquire a 33% equity interest
in Pennybacker and the potential earn-out obligation with a maximum value of $21,772,000 (USD15,000,000).

This potential earn-out obligation was not recognised by CFL; hence the Group recorded its share of this obligation as
an additional acquisition cost of Pennybacker through CFL. It will be ultimately paid by CFL to Pennybacker (refer to
Note 14 footnote 4 for details). At the date of acquisition, the fair value of its share in the earn-out payments was
$4,552,000 (USD3,139,000).

CFL’s investment in Pennybacker is accounted as investment in an associate. The acquisition of the interest in
Pennybacker included other identifiable intangible assets and goodwill of $34,487,000.
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b. Summarised financial information for associates

2020
Comprehensive income
Revenue and other income for the year

Profit after tax for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividends/distributions received during the year

The above profit after tax includes the following:

- Depreciation and amortisation
- Interest income

- Interest expense

- Income tax expense

Financial position
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Net assets/(liabilities)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial position to

the carrying amount recognised by the Group:

- Net assets/(liabilities) before determination of fair

values
- Ownership interest in %
- Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest

- Acquired goodwill and other identifiable intangibles

- Impairment

- Undistributed profits

- Foreign currency movement
Closing balance

The above assets and liabilities include the following:

- Cash and cash equivalents

- Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other

payables and provisions)

- Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and

other payables and provisions)

Notes:

)¢

Aggregate of

immaterial
Pennybacker?! VPC VPC-Holdco associates Total
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

5,783 44,821 782 73,080 124,766
4,723 2,553 11,274 1,883 20,432
4,723 2,553 11,274 1,883 20,432
542 93 3,144 1,193 4,972
3 2,198 - 1,734 3,935
- 17 - 220 237
16 1,554 - 618 2,188
- - - 1,335 1,335
3,204 25,329 - 27,828 56,361
4,199 16,802 14,837 24,099 59,937
(5,390) (42,769) (536) (20,948) (69,643)
- (11,180) - (18,913) (30,093)
2,013 (11,818) 14,301 12,066 16,562
2,013 (11,818) 14,301 12,066 16,562

16.5%2 24.90% 24.90% 28.05%
332 (2,943) 3,561 3,384 4,334
32,595 73,362 23,876 18,123 147,956
- (14,307) (3,631) (3,743) (21,681)*
238 1,170 - 1,033 2,441
(7) 361 100 102 556
33,158 57,643 23,906 18,899 133,606
66 1,261 - 10,091 11,418
- (17,081) - (1,164) (18,245)
- (11,180) - (17,715) (28,895)

! Pennybacker was acquired on 14 December 2019, therefore the profit or loss information only covers the period from acquisition to 30 June 2020.
2 The effective ownership interest of the Group of 16.5% was used calculating the proportion of the Group’s ownership at Pennybacker through the

joint venture in CFL.

3 The rate relates to multiple different % across multiple entities.
4 Did not include the impairment of $115,000 attributable to FIM that was sold on 14 October 2019.
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Aggregate of

immaterial
Aperio? VPC VPC-Holdco associates Total
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2019
Comprehensive income
Revenue for the year 18,873 32,488 5,015 33,287 89,663
Profit after tax for the year 9,144 2,361 4,762 3,004 19,271
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 9,144 2,361 4,762 3,004 19,271
Dividends/distributions received during the year 3,878 - 971 867 5,716
The above profit after tax includes the following:

- Depreciation and amortisation 48 960 - 1,206 2,214

- Interest income - 10 - 38 48

- Interest expense - 717 - 320 1,037

- Income tax expense - - - 830 830
Financial position
Current assets - 39,229 8,981 17,702 65,912
Non-current assets - 12,074 - 15,374 27,448
Current liabilities - (52,483) (257) (10,460) (63,200)
Non-current liabilities - (3,795) - (5,899) (9,694)
Net (liabilities)/assets - (4,975) 8,724 16,717 20,466
Reconciliation of the summarised financial position to the
carrying amount recognised by the Group:

- Net assets before determination of fair values - (4,975) 8,724 16,717 20,466

- Ownership interest in % - 24.90% 24.90% 22.18%2

- Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest - (1,239) 2,172 3,708 4,641

- Acquired goodwill and intangibles - 68,603 23,538 9,820 101,961

- Impairment - - - (2,914) (2,914)

- Undistributed profits - 588 216 (14) 790

- Foreign currency movement - 3,508 1,313 844 5,665
Closing balance - 71,460 27,239 11,444 110,143
The above assets and liabilities include the following:

- Cash and cash equivalents - 723 - 8,004 8,727

- Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other

payables and provisions) - 15,697 - 35 15,732
- Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and
other payables and provisions) - 2,770 - 4,673 7,443
Notes:

1 Aperio was sold on 8 August 2018, therefore the profit or loss information only covers the period 1 July 2018 to the date of disposal.
2 The rate relates to multiple different % across multiple entities.

c. Accounting policies

(i) Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but does not control or joint control over

those policies. A joint venture is an entity over which the Group has joint control over its net assets. Joint control is the
power to control in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee.
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The financial statements of the associates that are domiciled in Australia are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Group (30 June). For the USA and the UK domiciled associates and joint venture, their reporting period vary
between 31 December and 31 March. For equity accounting purposes, the Group takes up the proportionate share of
the net profits/(losses) of these associates and joint venture based on their pro-rata financial statements as at 30 June,
so as to align the proportionate share of their net profits/losses with the Group.

The results of associates and joint ventures are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting from the date on which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or joint venture is initially recognised in the statement of financial position at
cost and deferred consideration and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income or loss of the associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or
joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

On acquisition of the investment in an associate or joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the investment.

Distributions or dividends received from the associates or joint venture are reduced from the carrying value. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

(ii) Impairment

The requirements of AASB 136 are applied to determine whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets) is tested for impairment in accordance with
AASB 136 ‘Impairment of Assets’ as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part (as a reduction) of the
carrying amount of the investment.

(iii)  Disposal

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or
joint venture, or when the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair
value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with AASB 9. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint
venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that associate or joint venture had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

80



PACIFIC CURRENT GROUP LIMITED
(ABN 39 006 708 792)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 , ‘

d. Key estimates, judgments, and assumptions

Impairment of investments in associates and joint venture

At the end of each reporting period, management is required to assess the carrying values of each of the underlying
investments in associates and joint venture of the Group. Should assets underperform or not meet expected growth

targets from prior expectations, a resulting impairment of the investments is recognised if that deterioration in
performance is deemed not to be derived from short term factors such as market volatility. Factors that are considered
in assessing possible impairment in addition to financial performance include changes to key investment staff,

significant investment underperformance and litigation. A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an

associate or joint venture below its cost is also an objective evidence of impairment. During the year, the investments

in associates and joint venture were tested for impairment. Blackcrane, FIM, VPC and VPC-Holdco were impaired for

$21,794,000 (2019: $2,914,000 for AlphaShares, LLC, Blackcrane and FIM).

The following were the rates applied in the cash flow projections during the discrete period on associates with

impairment:
Associates Weighted average Tax Terminal
discount rate rate growth rate
Blackcrane 17% 21% 3%
IFP 11% 25% 3%
VPC 12% 26.5% 3%
VPC-Holdco 18.5% 26.5% N/A

FIM was impaired to bring down its carrying value to its selling price.

Impact of COVID-19

While the specific areas of judgement noted above did not change, the Group applied further judgement to consider

the impact of COVID-19 within those identified areas. Refer to Section A(f) for details.

Sensitivity analysis

An analysis was conducted to determine the sensitivity of the impairment test to reasonable changes in the key
assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount of the Group’s investment in associates and joint venture. The
sensitivities tested include a 5% reduction in the annual cash flow of the associates, a 1% decrease in the terminal
growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond financial year 2021 and a 1% increase in the discount rate applied

to cash flow projections.

The impact on the impairment as result of these sensitivities is shown below:

Sensitivity Impact on impairment assessment Impairment
$’000
A 5% decrease in cash flows Further impairment of Blackcrane, IFP, VPC and VPC-
Holdco 4,753
A 1% decrease in terminal growth rate Further impairment of Blackcrane, IFP and VPC 4,790
A 1% increase in discount rate Further Impairment of Blackcrane, IFP, VPC and VPC-
Holdco 10,132

AASAB 136 requires that where a reasonably possible change in a key assumption would cause the carrying amount of

the investment in associates to exceed its recoverable amount, the value at which an impairment first arises shall be

disclosed.
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23.  Parent entity disclosures

Summarised presentation of the parent entity, Pacific Current Group Limited, financial statements:

2020 2019
$’000 $’000
Summarised statement of financial position
Assets
Current assets 3,186 3,342
Non-current assets 226,001 225,112
Total assets 229,187 228,454
Liabilities
Current liabilities 12,062 36,184
Non-current liabilities 1,362 1,609
Total liabilities 13,424 37,793
Net assets 215,763 190,661
Equity
Share capital 178,424 166,279
Retained earnings 30,602 19,765
Reserves 6,737 4,617
Total equity 215,763 190,661
Summarised statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Profit/(Loss) for the year 32,356 (7,030)
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 32,356 (7,030)

The accounting policies of the parent are consistent with the Group.
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24. Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated
on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Transactions between the Group and its related parties are
disclosed below.

2020 2019
$ $
Compensation paid to key management personnel (KMP) of the Company
Short-term employee benefits 2,563,720 2,628,029
Post employment benefits 43,765 79,191
Termination benefits - 350,378
Share based payments 803,163 1,015,992

3,410,648 4,073,590

Detailed remuneration disclosures are provided in the Remuneration Report.
Apart from the above, the Group had no other transactions with Directors, their related parties, or loans to KMP.

Transactions with associates and affiliated entities
Revenue and other income transactions

- Commission income (Blackcrane, GQG and VPC) 3,875,287 5,076,630
- Retainer fees (Blackcrane, GQG and VPC) 312,828 751,483
- Service fees (AlphaShares, LLC and Blackcrane) 29,848 65,101
- Interest income (IFP) 30,776 -
- Dividends and distributions income (GQG) 10,087,868 11,146,488
- Other income — (Alphashares, LLC, Blackcrane and FIM) 250,144 2,500

Investments in associates and joint venture transactions

- Investment in joint venture (CFL) 29,862,789 -
- Additional contributions 8,867,433 126,662
- Dividends and distributions 5,470,935 5,716,267
- Loans to associates (IFP) 2,024,439 -
- Conversion of loans receivable to associate (IFP) 480,440 -
- Conversion of investment in FA at FVTOCI to associate (IFP) 3,786,386 -
- Additional investments at FVTPL (IFP) 2,089,351 -

Balances at the end of the reporting period

- Trade receivables (Blackcrane, GQG and VPC) 1,859,336 2,407,876
- Dividends receivable (FIM, GQG and ROC) 6,099,932 2,812,748
- Consulting fee receivable (Blackcrane) 14,514 -
- Interest receivable (IFP) 13,966 -
- Loans receivable (IFP) 678,553 -
- Financial assets at fair value (IFP) 1,213,690 1,530,614

The above transactions with related parties were on normal terms and conditions.
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F. OTHER INFORMATION

This section provides other information of the Group, including further details share-based payments, auditor’s
remuneration, significant events subsequent to reporting date and adoption of new and revised Standards.

25.  Share-based payments
a. The Group Long-Term Incentive (“LTI”) Plan

(i) Performance rights of Mr. Greenwood

Under the MD & CEO LTI Plan

The performance rights to Mr. Greenwood granted on 21 June 2018 was approved by the shareholders on 30
November 2018 at the Annual General Meeting. The issue of performance rights to Mr. Greenwood as part of his new
role effective 1 July 2018 was no more than 2,500,000 performance rights. One tranche covers the performance period
1 July 2018 to 30 June 2021 and the other tranche covers the performance period 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2022. Tranche
1 and Tranche 2 have vesting dates of 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2022, respectively. Each tranche is subdivided into
three lots with different performance conditions, one requiring continuous employment and a share price hurdle and
the other two requiring different total shareholder return hurdles to be satisfied. The share price hurdle pertained to
the 30 day volume weighted average price (“VWAP”) of a share ending on the last day of trading at 30 June 2021 for
Tranche 1 and 30 June 2022 for Tranche 2 must exceed $6.75 per share adjusted for the target price. The first TSR
hurdle pertained to the VWAP plus the aggregate dividends paid on a share during the relevant performance period
which is more than the target price increased at the rate of 8.5% per annum compounded annually. The second TSR
hurdle pertained to the VWAP plus the TSR during the relevant performance period which is more than the target price
increased at the rate of 11% per annum compounded annually.

The average value of each right was $0.609. The total value at grant date of these outstanding performance rights was
$1,520,506 (refer to section c below for the assumptions) for an equivalent number of shares of 871,398. The
performance rights on issue were valued on 30 November 2018 by an independent adviser using a Monte Carlo pricing
model.

Any securities to be allocated on vesting of the performance rights under this plan will be issued.
Under the Old LTI Plan

On 5 October 2017, the Company granted 250,000 performance rights to Mr. Greenwood as part of his employment
package that was restructured in October 2016. Two tranches of rights were issued with equal proportions (50%)
vesting based on the relative TSR of the Company compared to the ASX 300 (Hurdle 1) and a group of seven other
domestic and international fund managers (Hurdle 2). The value of each right for Tranche 1 and 2 were $4.29 and
$3.83, respectively. The total value of these outstanding performance rights as at 30 June 2018 was $1,014,107 (refer
to section c below for the assumptions on the fair value) amortised over two years and nine months from the grant
date. The performance rights on issue were valued on 26 October 2017 by an independent adviser using a Monte Carlo
pricing model. The vesting date of these rights was 1 July 2020.

Any securities to be allocated on vesting of the performance rights will be purchased on the market under this plan
and therefore shareholder approval is not required or at Board’s discretion, shareholder approval may be sought.

AON Solutions Australia Limited (“AON”) was commissioned to provide a report to determine whether the
performance rights issued on 5 October 2017 have vested as at 1 July 2020. AON Solutions determined that 41% of the
250,000 performance rights vested as at 1 July 2020. On 21 August 2020, the Directors of the Company approved the
purchase on market of 102,500 ordinary shares for Mr. Greenwood because of the vesting of his performance rights
issued 5 October 2017.
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On 5 October 2016, the Company granted 250,000 performance rights to Mr. Greenwood. Two tranches of rights were
issued with equal proportions (50%) vesting based on the relative TSR of the Company compared to the ASX 300
(Hurdle 1) and a group of seven other domestic and international fund managers (Hurdle 2). The value of each right for
Hurdle 1 and Hurdle 2 were $1.65 and $2.02, respectively. Total value of the outstanding performance rights is
$458,765 amortised over two years and seven months from the grant date. The performance rights on issue were
valued on 5 October 2016 by an independent adviser using a Monte Carlo pricing model. The vesting date of these
rights is 1 July 2019.

AON was commissioned to provide a report to determine whether the performance rights issued on 5 October 2016
have vested as at 1 July 2019. AON Hewitt determined that 41% of the 250,000 performance rights vested as at 1 July
2019.

On 30 August 2019, the Directors of the Company approved the purchase on market of 102,500 ordinary shares for
Mr. Greenwood because of the vesting of his performance rights issued 5 October 2016. This was completed on 28
November 2019.

(ii) Performance rights of Mr. Ferragina

Under the OId LTI Plan

On 26 October 2016, the Company granted 100,000 performance rights to Mr. Ferragina. Two tranches of rights were
issued with equal proportions (50%) vesting based on the relative TSR of the Company compared to the ASX 300
(Hurdle 1) and a group of seven other domestic and international fund managers (Hurdle 2). The value of each right for
Hurdle 1 and Hurdle 2 were $1.65 and $2.02, respectively. Total value of the outstanding performance rights is
$184,000 amortised over two years and seven months from the grant date. The performance rights on issue were
valued on 26 October 2016 by an independent adviser using a Monte-Carlo pricing model. The vesting date of these
rights was 1 July 2019.

AON was commissioned to provide a report to determine whether the performance rights issued on 26 October 2016
have vested as at 1 July 2019. AON Hewitt determined that 41% of 100,000 performance rights vested as at 1 July
2019.

On 30 August 2019, the Directors of the Company approved the purchase on market of 41,000 ordinary shares for Mr.
Ferragina because of the vesting of his performance rights issued on 26 October 2016. This was completed on 28
November 2019.

(iii)  Performance rights of officers and employees

Under the Employee Share Ownership Plan 2018

On 25 June 2019, the Company granted no more than 750,000 performance rights to certain officers in accordance
with the Employee Share Ownership Plan 2018 approved by shareholders on 30 November 2018 at the 2018 Annual
General Meeting. Tranche 1 covers the performance period 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2021 and Tranche 2 covers the
performance period 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2022. Tranche 1 and Tranche 2 have vesting dates of 30 June 2021 and 30
June 2022, respectively. Each tranche is subdivided into three lots with different performance conditions, one
requiring continuous employment and a share price hurdle and the other two requiring different total shareholder
return hurdles to be satisfied. The share price hurdle pertained to the 30-day VWAP of a share ending on the last day
of trading at 30 June 2021 for Tranche 1 and 30 June 2022 for Tranche 2 must exceed $6.75 per share adjusted for the
target price. The first TSR hurdle pertained to the VWAP plus the aggregate dividends paid on a share during the
relevant performance period which is more than the target price increased at the rate of 8.5% per annum
compounded annually. The second TSR hurdle pertained to the VWAP plus the TSR during the relevant performance
period which is more than the target price increased at the rate of 11% per annum compounded annually.
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The average value of each right was $0.183. The total value at grant date of these outstanding performance rights was
$136,985 (refer to section c below for the assumptions on the fair value) for an equivalent number of shares of
222,913. The performance rights on issue were valued on 25 June 2019 by an independent adviser using a Monte Carlo
pricing model.

Any securities to be allocated on vesting of the performance rights under this plan will be issued.

On 1 August 2019, the Company granted no more than 200,000 performance rights to certain officers in accordance
with the existing Employee Share Ownership Plan 2018. Tranche 1 covers the performance period 1 July 2019 to 30
June 2021 and Tranche 2 covers the performance period 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2022. Tranche 1 and Tranche 2 have
vesting dates of 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2022, respectively. Each tranche is subdivided into two lots with different
performance conditions, one requiring continuous employment and a share price hurdle and the other requiring a TSR
hurdle to be satisfied. The share price hurdle pertained to the 30-day VWAP of a share ending on the last day of
trading at 30 June 2021 for Tranche 1 and 30 June 2022 for Tranche 2 must exceed $6.75 per share adjusted for the
target price. The TSR hurdles pertained to the VWAP plus the aggregate dividends paid on a share which must be more
than the target price increased at the rate of 8.5% per annum compounded annually and TSR must be more than the
target price increased at 11% per annum over the relevant performance period compounded annually.

The average value of each right was $1.299. The total value at grant date of these outstanding performance rights was
$259,750 (refer to section c below for the assumptions on the fair value) for an equivalent number of shares of
200,000. The performance rights on issue were valued on 1 August 2019 by an independent adviser using a Monte
Carlo pricing model.

(iv)  Performance rights recognised in the profit or loss

The amount of performance rights amortisation expense for the year was $961,000 (2019: $1,016,000).

(v) Shares bought on market to settle share-based payments

The shares bought on market to settle share based payments during the financial year amounted to $998,000 (2019:
nil).

b. Accounting policies
Equity settled transactions

The Company provides benefits to employees (including senior executives and Directors) of the Company in the form
of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares
(equity settled transactions).

The Company’s Long-Term Incentive plan is in place whereby the Company, at the discretion of the Board of Directors,
awards performance rights to Directors, executives and certain members of staff of the Company. Each performance
right at the time of grant represents one company share upon vesting.

The cost of equity settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting
period based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest.

The cumulative expense recognised for equity based transactions at each reporting date until vesting date reflects (i)
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and (ii) the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. No adjustment is made for the likelihood of market performance conditions being
met as the effect of these conditions is included in the determination of fair value at grant date. The consolidated
statement of profit or loss charge or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.
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No cumulative expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest due to the non-fulfilment of a non-market
condition.

If the terms of an equity settled award are modified, as a minimum, an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee, as measured at the date of
modification.

If an equity settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it has vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new award are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award as described in the previous paragraph.

c. Key estimates, judgments, and assumptions
Share-based payment transactions

The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the
equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined using hybrid
Monte-Carlo/binomial option pricing model with the assumptions.

The assumptions used in arriving at the valuations are as follows:

=  Under the MD & CEO LTI Plan - volatility of 30% being a measure of the expected variability of the underlying
share price, expected dividend yield of 3.84% per annum, risk free rates of 2.07% and 2.15% per annum.

= Under the Old LTI Plan — three year volatility of 38.1% for PAC, 30.3% for funds management comparator group
and 35.6% for ASX 300 comparator group being a measure of the expected variability of the underlying share
price, expected dividend yield of 3.2% per annum, risk free rate of 2.0% per annum.

= Under the Employee Share Ownership Plan 2018

- Issued on 25 June 2019 - volatility of 30% being a measure of the expected variability of the underlying share
price, expected dividend yield of 4.48% per annum, risk free rate of 0.89% and 0.90% per annum.

- Issued on 1 August 2019 - volatility of 30% being a measure of the expected variability of the underlying
share price, expected dividend yield of 3.6% per annum, risk free rates of 0.87% and 0.83% per annum.

The accounting estimates and assumptions relating to equity-settled share-based payments would have no impact on
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next annual reporting period but may impact expenses and
equity.
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26. Significant events subsequent to reporting date

On 31 August 2020, the Directors of the Company declared a final dividend on ordinary shares in respect of the 2020
financial year. The total amount of the dividend is $12,427,000 which represents a fully franked dividend of 25 cents
per share. The dividend has not been provided for in the 30 June 2020 consolidated financial statements.

On 27 August 2020, the Board approved a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (“DRP”) for the Company. The final dividend
for 2020 financial year will be subject to the DRP. Any shares issued under the DRP will be at a 5% discount to the
average of the daily Volume Weighted Average Price calculated over a 10-day period commencing on the third trading
day following the record date.

Other than the matters detailed above there has been no matter or circumstance, which has arisen since 30 June 2020
that has significantly affected or may significantly affect either the operations or the state of affairs, of the Group.
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27. Adoption of new and revised Standards

a. New and amended AASB standards that are effective for the current year

(i) AASB 16 ‘Leases’

The Group adopted the modified retrospective approach on transition to AASB 16 from 1 July 2019. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules using a modified retrospective approach are
recognised in the opening retained earnings on 1 July 2019 and comparative information were not restated.

(i.a) Adjustments recognised on adoption of AASB 16

On adoption of AASB 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been classified
as operating leases under the principles of AASB117 ‘Leases’. These liabilities were measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as at 1 July 2019. The

weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 July 2019 were 5.98%.

The table below shows the operating lease commitments disclosed at 30 June 2019 and the movement of the lease
liability recognised as at 1 July 2019:

$’000

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 30 June 2019 3,207

Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate of at the date of initial application 2,846
Add: sub lease liability recognised as at 30 June 2019:

- current 246

- hon-current 255

- impact of the adoption of AASB 16 to the existing sub-lease liability 61

Less: leases with less than 12 months term recognised on a straight-line basis as expense (40)

Less: short-term leases recognised on a straight-line basis as expense (84)

Less: low-value leases recognised on a straight-line basis as expense (6)

Lease liability recognised as at 1 July 2019 3,278

Of which are:

Current lease liabilities 778

Non-current lease liabilities 2,500

3,278

The associated right-of-use assets for property and equipment leases were measured at the amount equal to the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the
balance sheet as at 30 June 2019. The existing onerous lease recognised as sub-lease liability and sub-lease receivable
were remeasured using the incremental borrowing rates at the date of initial application of AASB 16. The resulting
difference has been recognised as an adjustment to the opening retained earnings.

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the following types of assets:

1July 2019

$’000
Properties 2,654
Equipment 76
2,730
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The change in accounting policy affected the following items in the balance sheet on 1 July 2019:

$’000
Other financial assets: sub-lease receivable — increase by 62
Right-of-use assets — increase by 2,730
Trade and other payables - decrease by 56
Other financial liabilities: sublease payable — decrease by 502
Lease liabilities — (increase) by (3,278)
Provisions: other — (increase) by (67)
Gross impact on retained earnings on 1 July 2019 5
Income tax (2)
Net impact on retained earnings on 1 July 2019 was an increase 4

(i.a.1) Impact on segment disclosures

Segment assets and segment liabilities for 30 June 2019 all increased because of the change in accounting policy. Lease
liabilities are now included in segment liabilities. The following segments were affected by the change in policy:

Segment Segment
Assets liabilities
$’000 $’000
Tier 1 boutiques 1,733 1,733
Tier 2 boutiques - -
Central administration 1,059 1,054
2,792 2,787

(i.a.2) Practical expedients applied
In applying AASB 16 for the first time, the group has used the following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

= reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous;

= the accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 July 2019 as
short-term leases;

= the exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application; and

= the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate
the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is/or contains a lease at the date of initial application.
Instead, for contracts entered into before the transition date the Group relied on its assessment made applying AASB
117 and Interpretation 4 ‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’.

There was no material impact on the equity accounted associates on adoption of AASB 16 due to the modified
retrospective approach resulting in the right-of-use assets being equal to the lease liabilities.

(ii) Other accounting standards mandatorily effective for the current year
All other new and revised accounting standards relevant to the Group that are mandatorily effective for the current

year have been adopted by the Group. Adoption of these other new and revised accounting standards did not result in
a material financial impact to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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b. Standards and interpretations in issue not yet adopted

The AASB has issued several new and amended accounting standards and Interpretations that have mandatory
application dates for future reporting periods have not been early adopt by the Group.

These standards are not expected to have a material impact on the Group in the current or future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions.
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